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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Like I said before,

          3  we have a little bit of a longer day than usual for

          4  Land Use. We have the budget briefings today, or

          5  budget hearing on the Preliminary Budget of the

          6  Mayor of the City of New York. Landmarks is going to

          7  be at 11:00, 12:00 is DoITT, right? 1:00 is City

          8  Planning.

          9                 So, Commissioner Tierney is coming,

         10  the new Commissioner of DoITT is going to attend the

         11  12:00 and at 1:00 Commissioner Burden will be

         12  joining us.

         13                 For now, though, we have the

         14  substantive agenda.

         15                 LU No. 29. Pelham Park Rezoning.

         16  Councilman Vacca's district to ensure future

         17  development, is in the character of the area that's

         18  there. We lowered the FAR, reduction of depth of

         19  commercial overlays.

         20                 LU No. 30. Middle Village Glendale

         21  Rezoning. Councilman Gallagher. Lower Density,

         22  reduced depth of the commercial overlay. Also to

         23  keep within the characteristic of the community.

         24                 LU No. 72, which is called the Seaman

         25  Cottage. Councilman Oddo's district. It is the
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          2  revival cottage from the 1830s. It's been to

          3  historic Richmond Town. It is to designate as a

          4  landmark.

          5                 Hanac Astoria -- I see you looking

          6  for verification that that's good. It's a good

          7  thing. Hanac Astoria Senior Residence. Senior

          8  Housing. Senior Center and Retail. Parking is also

          9  provided. It is in Councilman Peter Vallone, Jr.'s

         10  district.

         11                 LU No. 75. Westchester Square Zerega

         12  rezoning. Council Member Palma and Council Member

         13  Vacca's district. It is to preserve the character of

         14  the area. It's an application by City Planning. It

         15  preserves the detached built forms of the interior

         16  blocks, and allows for larger buildings on wide

         17  streets.

         18                 LU No. 76. Melrose Hotel. Physical

         19  culture text amendment. Allows health clubs by

         20  special permit in C18X districts. We are amending

         21  the use group of C18X district.

         22                 West Chelsea Fucas (phonetic). This

         23  is a new term in Land Use, Future Actions. 12 text

         24  amendments to deal with technical and administrative

         25  changes as we did the rezoning in the special West
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          2  Chelsea District.

          3                 The rest are UDAAPs. LU No. 18, 25,

          4  38, 47, 51, 54, 56 and 57.

          5                 Before we open it up for discussion,

          6  let me just comment quickly on Middle Village

          7  Glendale Rezoning. That is something that Councilman

          8  Gallagher has been working for, working on for

          9  years. Has gone through the community board. I know

         10  that someone here testified about not having not

         11  having notice of it. I will tell you on a personal

         12  level, that used to be my district.

         13                 There has been more advertising, more

         14  press articles, more newsletters on this one

         15  rezoning than I've ever seen in this community. So,

         16  I highly recommend the support of the Middle Village

         17  Glendale Rezoning, as I do the Pelham Bay Park

         18  Rezoning. I know there are some issues at the

         19  Subcommittee as well. That has been a very long

         20  process. It's gone through the entire ULURP process.

         21  The person who came to testify spoke to Councilman

         22  Vacca about the rezoning, and Councilman Vacca is

         23  still in support of it. Open it up for discussion.

         24                 Okay, call the roll.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dickens.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gardonick.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lappin.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 16 in the

         10  affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         11  abstentions, all items are adopted.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I will ask that

         13  really you stay for the budget hearings. It's an

         14  extremely important part of the process. The City

         15  Planning Commission, Landmarks and DoITT. City

         16  Planning Commission especially, I know it's 11:00,

         17  it is the agency that all of you will be dealing

         18  with almost every day for the next four years. So,

         19  please come, ask questions. Get to know the

         20  Commissioner for the new members. It's extremely

         21  important also to get to know this Commissioner. She

         22  is an extremely talented woman who will be here to

         23  testify. Thank you.

         24                 And Commissioner Tierney said he may

         25  be here a little bit early, so that everybody knows.
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          2                 Joel and Maria, you can't leave until

          3  you sign the reports.

          4                 We need to have some other Council

          5  members vote. Who came in, John?

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          7  Jackson.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member Liu,

          9  how do you vote?

         10                 Oh, sorry.

         11                 Council Member Liu, how do you vote?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         14  Jackson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

         16  This week and last week.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You have to sign

         18  the report. Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Committee on Land Use,

         20  Council Member Clarke.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote now stands at

         23  18 in the affirmative.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We appreciate you

         25  being here, not only timely, but early for us. We
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          2  thank you for that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I'm delighted

          4  to be here early.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Let me introduce

          6  you, if I can, to some of the Council members, since

          7  some of them are new. If we could have order in the

          8  room, that would be great.

          9                 Council Member Larry Seabrook, on my

         10  left. Council Member Inez Dickens. Council Member

         11  Maria del Carmen Arroyo. Council Member Yvette

         12  Clarke. Council Member Al Vann. Council Member

         13  Jessica Lappin, who as you know is the Chair of the

         14  Subcommittee on Landmarks.

         15                 Council Member Tony Avella. Council

         16  Member Jimmy Oddo, and Council Member Eric Gioia.

         17  And as new members come in, I'll introduce them as

         18  well. And Council Member John Liu, who is sitting

         19  there very quietly.

         20                 Thank you, Commissioner. The floor is

         21  yours.

         22                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Thank you. And

         23  Rhonda Wist, the Executive Director of the Landmarks

         24  Commission is here to my right.

         25                 Good morning, Chairwoman Katz and
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          2  Honorable Council Members. And my name is Bob

          3  Tierney, Chairman of the Landmarks Preservation

          4  Commission of the City. Thanks for giving me the

          5  opportunity to testify before your Committee about

          6  the Commission and it's Fiscal Year 2007 Preliminary

          7  Budget.

          8                 The Landmarks Commission is the City

          9  agency responsible for identifying and projecting

         10  the City's historical architectural and cultural

         11  heritage.

         12                 The Commission carries out its

         13  mission by designating individual landmarks,

         14  interior landmarks, scenic landmarks in historic

         15  districts and by regulating proposed work by

         16  buildings under our jurisdiction.  To date the

         17  Commission has designated 1,130 individual landmarks

         18  and 84 historic districts, with 11 district

         19  extensions, for a total of approximately 23,000

         20  buildings. When you total them all together, the

         21  individuals, all the buildings contained within the

         22  historic districts, it's a little over 23,000.

         23                 Over the past year, the Commission

         24  has continued to carry out my policy that I started

         25  out here, an administration policy, of designating
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          2  buildings throughout this City in all five boroughs.

          3                 In the Bronx, and let me just

          4  reiterate just a brief summary of what we've

          5  recently done, and particularly over the last 12

          6  months or so. In the Bronx we have designated the

          7  Fieldston Historic District, one of we think the

          8  most significant 20th century planned communities in

          9  New York City with remarkable historic and modern

         10  buildings to take advantage of that area's natural

         11  topography.

         12                 The Commission recently sent every

         13  member of this Committee and full Council actually a

         14  copy of the designation report for this district, in

         15  advance of the upcoming hearing with the Landmarks

         16  Subcommittee on March 28th. And we're also holding

         17  public hearings next month in our Commission, over

         18  at the Commission, on two proposed individual

         19  landmarks in the Bronx, that's the Piano factory in

         20  Woodhaven and the Orchard Beach Bath House and

         21  Promenade in Pelham Bay Park.

         22                 In Brooklyn, we have designated an

         23  individual landmark at 103 Broadway and Williamsburg

         24  and are pursuing designation of the proposed Crown

         25  Heights North Historic District with the great
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          2  cooperation and partnership of Councilman Vann, and

          3  are pursuing, in Manhattan, which we have not

          4  forgotten, we designated eight interior spaces in

          5  the Plaza Hotel, I think everybody has read about

          6  those. Nothing that we designated that we auctioned

          7  off, everybody should be assured of that. Whatever

          8  is being auctioned off is the furniture, and we

          9  actually check on that just to be certain. You never

         10  can be totally sure, but it's fine.

         11                 In this spring we're looking forward

         12  to designating, we're well along the way, to two

         13  historic districts in the West Village, which will

         14  help fill out the parts adjacent to the Greenwich

         15  Village, the Large Greenwich Village Historic

         16  District and also the Gansevoort Market District

         17  just to the north.

         18                 And we're also pursuing, staying in

         19  Manhattan for a moment, several other individual

         20  landmarks, including the Horn & Hardart building on

         21  the Upper West Side, about 104th and Broadway, as

         22  well as the Morse Building we voted on this Tuesday

         23  down here on Nassau Street in Lower Manhattan.

         24                 In Queens, we have designated, as

         25  Councilman Liu knows, with his cooperation as well,

                                                            14

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  the Fitzgerald-Ginsburg House, a neo-Tudor-style

          3  mansion, and we are working on a proposed Sunnyside

          4  Gardens Historic District.

          5                 Finally, in Staten Island, we have

          6  designated the Seaman Cottage in Richmondtown, and

          7  just again last Tuesday, or two days ago, the

          8  beautiful Victorian House at 1 Pendelton Place in

          9  New Brighton. And in the future we expect to

         10  calendar and hold public hearings on individual

         11  landmarks identified in the borough-wide survey that

         12  we have recently concluded relating to Staten

         13  Island.

         14                 So, that's a brief summary of the

         15  specifics of what we've been doing, and in effect

         16  where the money from last year is being spent, and I

         17  think wisely and well.

         18                 At the same time that our Research

         19  Department has been working on the Commission's

         20  designations, the Preservation Department, which is

         21  the regulatory, if you will, the regulatory arm of

         22  the agency, has been issuing permits at a record

         23  pace for work on already designated buildings, and

         24  that's basically good news. I mean, it's the

         25  economic upsurge, and largely good news, the
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          2  economic upsurge continues, people are renovating

          3  and restoring their properties, and that's all to

          4  the good and it's also all to the good that it

          5  occurs under our regulatory oversight.

          6                 The Commission has been increasing

          7  its outreach efforts to owners of landmarked

          8  properties to let them know what their rights and

          9  responsibilities as landmark owners are and the

         10  importance of working with the Commission to obtain

         11  the necessary approvals before proceeding with

         12  overall work on their landmark buildings. As always,

         13  we encourage public participation, it goes without

         14  saying in our hearing process, and make every effort

         15  to inform communities of the Landmark projects going

         16  on in their neighborhoods. We have an excellent

         17  relationship, I believe, with neighborhood groups,

         18  community groups. Of course, I hope and expect and

         19  strive for elected representatives as well, and up

         20  and down the pike, advocates. As much as we can we

         21  reach out, and not everyone always agrees with us,

         22  strangely enough, but that's expected and we move

         23  forward, but we always want as much and as broad a

         24  participation as possible.

         25                 And then related to that is the
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          2  launch of the newly-designed website which I believe

          3  really takes that to another level, also providing

          4  quicker access and more complete information on

          5  designated properties in the activities of the

          6  Commission.

          7                 Publications are available for

          8  download, have been updated for greater ease of use.

          9  Users can download the Commission's rules, public

         10  hearing and public meeting agendas, application

         11  forms, instructions for filing, get information

         12  about what materials will be needed to be submitted

         13  in order to obtain a permit. We haven't yet figured

         14  out a way, and I keep pushing people to try to do

         15  it, to do filings on line, but lawyers and everyone

         16  else tells me that there are major obstacles there.

         17  I'd like some day to see that happen.

         18                 Our goal is to make the filing

         19  process easier for homeowners. New to the website is

         20  the availability also to GIS system with data on

         21  landmarks which can be downloaded with the

         22  appropriate GIS software applications.

         23                 In addition, in conjunction with the

         24  Neighborhood Preservation Center, we will be

         25  scanning over 1,000 of our earlier designation
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          2  reports, all of which will become available to the

          3  public on the website, and invaluable, amazingly

          4  important resource that we've had access to, and

          5  scholars and researchers and owners have had access

          6  to, but I want to make it so that you put on the

          7  website and you punch a button so that you can print

          8  out these reports.

          9                 So, in the enforcement area, jump to

         10  that quickly, and we investigated over the last year

         11  511 complaints in the last eight months. In the

         12  first eight months of this fiscal year, in the same

         13  period have issued 435 warning letters, 233 notices

         14  of violation, 26 stop-work orders, the real

         15  important part is less the numbers then the efforts

         16  we make to effectuate compliance with the landmarks

         17  law. It's not intended, and never is, I hope, a

         18  punitive system. It's one where people, for the most

         19  part inadvertently run afoul of the rules and

         20  regulations or even the landmarks law, we call it to

         21  their attention, we attempt through notices, warning

         22  notices and other means, to get people to come in,

         23  talk to us, see what's wrong, and how it can be

         24  corrected, and then if it's corrected, that's all to

         25  the good. Hopefully it does. But if necessary, we

                                                            18

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  have the stick also to go to notice of violations,

          3  stop work orders, other lawsuits, if required, in

          4  order to stop, that Councilman Avella's law last

          5  year, statute, bill that became a law for demolition

          6  by neglect gave us a very effective tool, when in

          7  those rare cases actually, thank goodness, where

          8  buildings are actually being close to demolish by

          9  neglect, and we can step in with that statutory

         10  tool.

         11                 So, as I've been saying, two-thirds

         12  of the warning letters result in owners applying

         13  immediately to the Commission to address the

         14  violations, and we take care of that in a spirit of

         15  cooperation.

         16                 Fiscal 2007 budget is approximately

         17  $3.75 million, with 3.2 million in City funds and

         18  562,000 in community development funds. This

         19  Administration, Mayor, has been extremely supportive

         20  of the Commission over the last four years, and we

         21  have added ten new hires during that period, I can

         22  specifically over the last three, and many of those

         23  ten were, I believe all of them in the last three,

         24  and with a total, we now have 59 staff members, 52

         25  full-time, seven part-time, and that makes this

                                                            19

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  Commission -- and size alone is not enough. It's got

          3  to actually do the job, and I believe we do the job

          4  extremely well, the Commission is bigger. Our

          5  Commission is bigger than the preservation agencies

          6  in Washington, Philadelphia and Chicago combined.

          7  But I think we have the landmarks, so we need the

          8  resources, and I believe we have resources and we're

          9  utilizing them to protect all these precious

         10  resources that we have.

         11                 Finally, as many of you may recall,

         12  in July 2004, the Commission adopted a fee schedule

         13  for work on landmark buildings that also required a

         14  permit from the Buildings Department. So, if you

         15  have to get a Buildings Department and there's a

         16  fee, then there's a very modest landmark fee added

         17  to that, if you will, seemlessly collected at the

         18  Buildings Department, and it's been quite seemless,

         19  quite effectively implemented. Two complaints over

         20  three years, which is remarkable, probably get a

         21  dozen this afternoon, but that has been our

         22  experience on that, and in the first eight months of

         23  this fiscal year, the City has collected

         24  approximately 1.05 million in revenue from the

         25  landmarks fees which is precisely our targeted goal
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          2  for the full fiscal year, so we'll probably come in

          3  somewhat above that. I think that is also a

          4  reflection of the economic activity, construction,

          5  preservation, renovation, restoration that's going

          6  on, and so a small amount of that is being used to

          7  support the overall mission of the agency.

          8                 So, I thank you all for allowing me

          9  to be here today and come on early and for your

         10  time. And obviously, as the Chair said, I will

         11  answer any questions that you all have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you,

         13  Commissioner. And let me just thank you for your

         14  responsiveness over the last year, since we met last

         15  time. As you know, we don't always agree

         16  substantively on everything, but your office and you

         17  have always been available, and I really do

         18  appreciate that. Sometimes that's three-quarters of

         19  the battle.

         20                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, we do

         23  appreciate your availability at all times. So, thank

         24  you. You and your entire staff, so...

         25                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have questions on

          4  the landmarks fees.

          5                 First let me acknowledge Erik Dilan,

          6  who came in. Dan Garodnick, who I don't think was

          7  here when we made the introduction.

          8                 Oh, Erik, Councilman Dilan, do you

          9  want to vote on the agenda?

         10                 Excuse me, Commissioner, while we do

         11  a little housekeeping.

         12                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure. Of

         13  course.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         16  much. Has anybody else walked in?

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         18  at 19 in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         19  no abstentions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have some

         21  question on the landmark fees, if I can?

         22                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: As you know, for

         24  years there was an issue as to whether or not having

         25  the application fees the landmark fees would halt
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          2  people coming in and applying.

          3                 My understanding, though, from the

          4  budget is that you allocated 1.050 million for the

          5  landmark fees, and now at this point in the budget

          6  it's still at 1,040,000. So, I'm assuming that the

          7  applications have not declined because of the fees.

          8  In fact, it sounds like even though there is a fee,

          9  applications have increased.

         10                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That's right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can you just

         12  explain that in a minute, if you can?

         13                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I think it's

         14  partially due to the economic resurgence, or surge,

         15  if you will, in terms of people wanting to improve

         16  their homes, residential construction activity,

         17  commercial construction activities, big projects, so

         18  the more that's being built in the City,

         19  particularly in historic districts and landmarked

         20  areas, the more activity we have.

         21                 People come to us for the appropriate

         22  permits, and that generates more fees. It's almost a

         23  direct connection relationship to the amount of

         24  applications. And you're absolutely right, not only

         25  has it not diminished, the fees have not diminished,
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          2  or the numbers of applications, they appear to have

          3  basically no affect. I believe the applications are

          4  going up for reasons related to the economy, and the

          5  fees, the very modest fees have not stopped that at

          6  all.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: In fact, I would

          8  assume that the money that you allocated, the 1.050

          9  was based on last years applications and how many

         10  they came in. So, now that we're not even finished

         11  with the budget cycle, there are more applications

         12  coming in this time than there was last year at this

         13  time.

         14                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That's exactly

         15  right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well, that's good

         17  to know. The newer members who might not have been

         18  sitting last year and the year before, and the year

         19  before, because it's an issue every single year,

         20  that was a very large concern as to whether or not

         21  the fees would hinder the applications, and so I was

         22  very relieved to see that that was not the case, and

         23  that we were still having the applications come in,

         24  in fact, it was increased.

         25                 But I have a question on the budget.
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          2                 Funding summary basically says the

          3  modified 2006 budget was 4,214,000, right?

          4  Preliminary budget for 2007 was 3,750,000. Does that

          5  include the fees?

          6                 COMMISSIONER TIENERY: It does include

          7  the fees. But I believe the disparity is because of

          8  the rollover of the CD funds.

          9                 Correct, Rhonda? Therefore, is it in

         10  a higher number?

         11                 Rhonda can explain it better than I.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: My real question,

         13  though, is that it sounds like, if you look at this,

         14  and I could be wrong, I need you to explain it, that

         15  really the City allocated $2,750,000 because they

         16  added another million because of the landmark fees.

         17  So, there's no maintenance of effort.

         18                 MS. WIST: Rhonda Wist.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.

         20                 MS. WIST: The fees are not part of

         21  this budget. The fees are what we're taking in, the

         22  City is taking in.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right.

         24                 MS. WIST: So, the 1.05, you know,

         25  expected to be more through the year is not shown in
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          2  this budget at all.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Great. So, where

          4  does that money go?

          5                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: The money goes

          6  into the general revenue.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It goes into the

          8  general revenues.

          9                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That's right.

         10                 In effect, we hope, it holds us

         11  harmless, if you will, and gives us some of the

         12  modest increases, some more than modest over the

         13  years.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, that answered

         15  my question. I thought it was going back into your

         16  budget.

         17                 Last year we asked the same question,

         18  I've got to ask it again. The community development

         19  money that keeps getting rolled over, can you

         20  explain? If you intend on using that this year, why

         21  not use --

         22                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: It is used.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         24                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Not all of it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: 486 -- what is it?
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          2  Why don't you describe what it is, number one?

          3                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Number two, how we

          5  came to that money.

          6                 And number three, why it keeps

          7  getting rolled over.

          8                 MS. WIST: Every year we get

          9  approximately $176,000 in money to give out for

         10  grants for facades, of buildings in historic

         11  districts and individual landmarks. That's the only

         12  money that we're talking about that gets rolled

         13  over. None of our other CD money used for personnel

         14  or, you know, other than personnel gets rolled over.

         15  So, it's just really the grant money that gets

         16  rolled over from year-to-year.

         17                 Every year we allocate a certain

         18  number of grants, depending on how many projects we

         19  get to not-for-profit users or low- and

         20  moderate-income homeowners. And some of the projects

         21  take a very long time to accomplish. This year the

         22  Apollo Theater was completed after being given grant

         23  money a number of years ago. It was part of a

         24  multi-phased project.

         25                 Sometimes we give grants to building,
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          2  and then the building decides that they want to do a

          3  larger project, so that takes a longer amount of

          4  time.

          5                 So, this year we had a rollover from

          6  previous years of, our numbers show $482,262. I

          7  think we all have --

          8                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I have a

          9  statement.

         10                 MS. WIST: Yes.

         11                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Do you mind if

         12  I read a brief statement that I think also flushes

         13  out a little bit more what Rhonda said, and I think

         14  also is a great story to tell, even though the

         15  rollover is a different aspect of it.

         16                 The historic preservation grant

         17  program has allocated 176,000 in community

         18  development block grant funds for Fiscal Year 2006.

         19  It offers grants and matching grants to low- and

         20  moderate-income homeowners and 501(c)(3) non-profit

         21  organizations to help restore or repair facades of

         22  their landmarked building. The average grant is

         23  approximately $15,000, and preference is given to

         24  owners who use other funds, leverage other funds

         25  along with the grant to restore the facades of their
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          2  building.

          3                 In the current fiscal year, the grant

          4  program has funded, just to take off a few examples,

          5  the restoration of the Apollo Theater in Harlem, and

          6  AIDS Center and Woodycrest Highbridge Center in the

          7  Bronx, the Common Ground Community Building on East

          8  28th Street, Baruch College in Washington Heights,

          9  three private homes of senior citizens in Prospect

         10  Lefferts Gardens in Brooklyn, among others.

         11                 In Fiscal Year '06, we have bid out

         12  11 homeowner projects, three are under construction,

         13  three are under contract pending construction, and

         14  additional five homeowner projects should go under

         15  contract shortly.

         16                 Low- and moderate-income homeowners

         17  find it increasingly difficult to find low-interest

         18  loans in additional funding to complete the facade

         19  restoration projects. In Fiscal Year '06, our staff

         20  worked closely with homeowners in locating matching

         21  grant funds through emergency grants offered by the

         22  Landmark Conservancy, low-interest loans through the

         23  small building loan program of HPD, and partnering

         24  with NYSERDA for energy conservation program grants,

         25  loans and grants, and Stapleton Heights Staten
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          2  Island program staffs are working with a low-income

          3  elderly homeowner to restore her home, find

          4  additional source of funds and list the support to

          5  maintain and repair her home and grounds.

          6                 So, the budget increase you see is

          7  due to the rollover of unspent funds, grant funds

          8  for projects which have not been completed funds for

          9  projects that are under development and should begin

         10  construction this year and funds for equipment

         11  supplies and consultant services. And then the rest

         12  of it is what Rhonda -- and then I have more

         13  examples.

         14                 I'm particularly proud of this grant

         15  program, and it always comes up sort of in a, not so

         16  much a negative context, but the rollover sounds

         17  like money is not being spent. It is being spent,

         18  and I think it's being spent in a way, it's being

         19  spent wisely and it's being spent for incredibly

         20  important purposes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And just lastly,

         22  it's about 125 a year; is that what you said?

         23                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: 175.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: 175 a year?

         25                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes, Ma'am.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Where does it come

          3  from?

          4                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: The Community

          5  Development Block Grant funds.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Federal government?

          7                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

          9                 Council Member Lappin is the Chair of

         10  the Subcommittee on Landmarks so I'm going to let

         11  her open up the questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 I want to say that, to echo your

         15  comments about -- though I haven't been chair for

         16  very long, I've appreciated your responsiveness and

         17  enjoyed our tour yesterday, and appreciated so many

         18  of you and your staff taking the time to answer our

         19  questions.

         20                 I have a couple of questions. One on

         21  the staff side. Your 52 staff members, could you

         22  give me a breakdown or a sense of how many staff are

         23  working on identifying and analyzing new properties

         24  and how many are working on the regulatory side?

         25                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Preservation,
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          2  which is the regulatory side, 24.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I'm sorry, 24?

          4                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Twenty-four.

          5  That's everybody. It's not just the -- I mean, the

          6  entire universe of people that perform that, there

          7  are between 14 and 16 preservation analysts,

          8  preservation specialists, who actually read the

          9  drawings, do the work, work for the contractors,

         10  work with the applicants, and then the rest support

         11  staff and supervisory staff and so on, but the total

         12  number is 24.

         13                 Research, which is the designation

         14  side, is a total number of 11. And then we have

         15  archeology 4, to fill out the rest of it,

         16  enforcement and legal six and then others, which

         17  apparently includes me, 14.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, the 11 who

         19  are doing the research are the folks who are doing

         20  more, the identifying and --

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That's right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And how long

         23  does it take generally for a project or a property

         24  from beginning to end? Everyone is different or is

         25  there a general --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Everyone is

          3  different, but it takes, let me put it this way, it

          4  takes longer than I would like it to take, but that

          5  doesn't mean it's taking longer than it needs to

          6  take. And MaryBeth Betts, who heads the research

          7  staff, is constantly being asked that question, and

          8  she's pushing and pushing and pushing and her people

          9  are, as you know, you see the overwhelming number of

         10  requests that we get.

         11                 But anyway, they're pushing hard. I'm

         12  pushing them even harder to try to do things, to do

         13  more, to do them faster, but specifically in answer

         14  to your question, you get a large historic district,

         15  it takes years. That sounds like an awfully long

         16  time, and I don't want it to be, oh, that's

         17  government. It isn't. The research correctly and

         18  thoroughly, hundreds of buildings, particularly

         19  historic buildings, is a daunting task. So, that's

         20  the one end of the spectrum.

         21                 The other end is in a specific

         22  individual landmark, it happens to be under some

         23  urgent threat, and Councilman Oddo certainly is

         24  aware of one of the classic ones, which is the HR

         25  Richardson House in Staten Island, that he brought
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          2  to my attention on January 2nd of two years ago,

          3  that it was basically facing the wrecking ball,

          4  incredibly important, and we moved astoundingly fast

          5  to get that done because we were facing a deadline.

          6  So, that was a deadline of potential destruction of

          7  an important, incredibly important resource.

          8                 So, we acted on that, over, you know,

          9  over a six-week period probably, start to finish,

         10  and we were able to put it together.

         11                 Everything in between, it varies, it

         12  varies. It varies on the number of buildings, where

         13  they are, the nature of the inquiry, the research

         14  records that are available and how fast we can get

         15  them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And as you're

         17  focusing on a big historic district like Fieldston

         18  with 250 homes, does that mean that other projects

         19  are also moving forward?

         20                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: It does.

         21  Although, in a big historic district that is moving

         22  rapidly toward designation, and to write the report

         23  and all the rest, it will require of these 11 people

         24  let's say, at least two have been dedicated

         25  specifically to Fieldston over the last few months,
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          2  to finish it up, put it all together to do the work.

          3  That's exclusive dedication.

          4                 But earlier on in the process, some

          5  people were working on Fieldston let's say in the

          6  morning and then doing other projects in the

          7  afternoon. So, it's not exclusive except toward the

          8  end.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And how many

         10  requests for evaluation are you seeing every year?

         11                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Approximately

         12  300 or so.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: That sounds

         14  like a lot for 11 folks. Is it 11 or 14? I want to

         15  be accurate.

         16                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Fourteen.

         17  Excuse me, 11.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Eleven. Eleven

         19  research folks who are trying to evaluate at least

         20  on some level 300 applications.

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That's right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: That sounds

         23  overwhelming.

         24                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: It is

         25  sometimes. It feels overwhelming, let me put it that
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          2  way.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Let me move

          4  to, you testified about a recent Boroughwide survey

          5  that was conducted at Staten Island; how many staff

          6  were working on that, and how long did it take?

          7                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: We had a single

          8  staff member dedicating three months in the summer

          9  to enable her to survey a thousand buildings in

         10  Staten Island. But I've got to qualify it a little

         11  bit. Some of it was, some of it was actually going

         12  literally street by street, the so-called windshield

         13  survey to look at every building, and those that

         14  were of particular interest, were photographed and

         15  notes taken and so on, and that was brought back and

         16  then became part of this overall survey.

         17                 Part of the survey also was looking

         18  at what had already been noted over the last 20, 30,

         19  40 years, picking out, refining and updating surveys

         20  that had already been done.

         21                 But the rule of thumb, and I've asked

         22  this question many times, and I've come now to a

         23  rough rule of thumb of approximately 1,000 buildings

         24  which are working full-time over a three-month

         25  period and it's a place like Staten Island with a
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          2  mix of mostly detached single family multiple --

          3  single-family homes probably in the range of 1,000

          4  over three months and therefore 4,000 a year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And how did

          6  you decide what this woman was going to take a look

          7  at? Did she do every block? Was it a -- I mean, how

          8  was it determined what she was going to survey?

          9                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Part of it was,

         10  not every block, but we knew from our past work in

         11  Staten Island, because of the input from members of

         12  this Committee, and others who have great knowledge

         13  and expertise about the borough and its historic

         14  resources, we had pretty good sense of where to

         15  focus and what to concentrate on.

         16                 So, it's a comprehensive survey but

         17  it doesn't mean every single house, every single

         18  block, but it's pretty thorough.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So it was done

         20  with the input of elected officials --

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: -- And

         23  community groups who had contacted you ahead of

         24  time.

         25                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes. And then
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          2  the results of hopefully also then become part of

          3  that continuing process of evaluation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: How many staff

          5  people do you think it would take to survey a larger

          6  borough like Queens? Or is it really just a 3,000 --

          7  let's just say Queens. I mean, would you just use

          8  the same model?

          9                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I think we

         10  would, and I would, of course, defer to MaryBeth

         11  Betts, the Director of Research, as to the precise

         12  approach and technique, and depending on what the

         13  existing resources, what's already been done, how we

         14  can utilize that work over that as our base. But

         15  there's a lot that hasn't been done, so I think,

         16  yes, we would generally use the same approach, and

         17  it would be a much more daunting task, because of

         18  this much larger borough, and there are many more

         19  buildings than in Staten Island.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Do you,

         21  though, the Staten Island Survey was a success?

         22                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes, a decided

         23  success.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And what will

         25  you do with the information gathered?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: We're already

          3  acting on it. We've taken the results, we've

          4  analyzed them and basically set them forth in a

          5  sense of priorities: What are the most significant

          6  buildings? What are the most -- a series of factors:

          7  How the significant the structures themselves are

          8  for the block on which they sit, the district in

          9  which they're contained, in the case that it might

         10  be a historic district. And then we have set

         11  priorities, and this, I'm not sure whether we ranked

         12  them A, B, C or D or whatever, 1, 2, 3, but in order

         13  of significance, historic significance,

         14  architectural significance, and there's a factor for

         15  endangerment, if you will, threatened, which

         16  buildings are, and that tends to move things up,

         17  which it ought to, of course, into a sense of

         18  urgency and what ought to be considered. So, we rank

         19  them, we do our analysis, we do summaries and we

         20  take pictures and then we talk to the elected

         21  officials who are in those areas where we've made

         22  these findings, get feedback and go and have a

         23  dialogue on that, and then ultimately the end

         24  product, of course, is to get buildings designated,

         25  and that's where -- we're actually heading toward
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          2  that right now out of the Staten Island survey.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay, thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just want to tag

          7  onto one of the things that Council Member Lappin

          8  asked.

          9                 Nothing has changed, if you do other

         10  boroughs besides Manhattan, basically it's done out

         11  of the Manhattan office still, right?

         12                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: My office, yes,

         13  the ninth floor of the community building, but all

         14  the fieldwork is done, of course, on-site.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right. But unlike,

         16  like City Planning or some of the other agencies,

         17  you don't have like a Queens Commissioner or

         18  Brooklyn staff member only that's in that area?

         19                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: No. No, we

         20  don't. The 11 commissioners by statute are required,

         21  there's a requirement that there be at least one

         22  Commissioner from each, but not at all in the City

         23  Planning model, no.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right. I just

         25  wanted to mention it because we talked about it last
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          2  year, but just for some folks that might not have

          3  been a hearing last year.

          4                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That's right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think that's

          6  important. I think that's one of the things that

          7  keeps coming up all the time, which is I know last

          8  year you spoke about, well, how do you know if

          9  something should be landmarked, and some of the time

         10  it's because your staff members in the street, and

         11  they see, well, look at this, look at that building,

         12  look at this area, and it's hard to make those types

         13  of recommendations if everyone is coming through

         14  central office in Manhattan, when us in the other

         15  boroughs, not outer boroughs, but other boroughs,

         16  besides Manhattan also are in desperate need of

         17  historical districts --

         18                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And I thank you, by

         20  the way, for coming next month to Queens. So, we

         21  appreciate that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And we look forward

         24  to that.

         25                 Council Member Avella.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  Mr. Commissioner.

          4                 I want to follow up on some of the

          5  comments and questions that Chair Lappin said, and I

          6  compliment my colleague on the appropriateness of

          7  her questions.

          8                 Let's go a little bit more into the

          9  budget situation as it relates to staffing, and what

         10  many of us consider a need by your agency for

         11  additional staff members.

         12                 To follow up on the questions, let's

         13  go to historic districts. And I know you sort of

         14  answered some of her questions.

         15                 What would you really need in terms

         16  of staffing, just to specifically assign a person to

         17  do an historic district? I mean, we're doing

         18  Fieldston, that hearing is coming up in the Council.

         19                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: You mentioned

         21  about Sunnyside Gardens, Richmond Hill, in Dennis

         22  Gallagher's district is prime importance to him. He,

         23  unfortunately, is at another Committee meeting. I

         24  have Broadway Flushing that I'm pushing in mind,

         25  which is 1,300 --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Thirteen

          3  hundred buildings.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: -- Homes.

          5                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Is there a

          7  definite staffing level that we can put in the

          8  budget and that you would accept that would enable

          9  you to in effect move these, at least the historic

         10  district applications ahead on a more timely basis?

         11                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Well, not only

         12  the ones you mentioned, but others that are coming

         13  down the pike, MaryBeth Betts has joined us at the

         14  table here, I suspect maybe by way of example, the

         15  Fieldston, which we're now moving 257 homes,

         16  basically a two-year effort. Part of it, not full

         17  time but two people for the bulk of the last year's;

         18  is that correct?

         19                 MS. WIST: Four.

         20                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Four overall.

         21  So, it would take, I mean, I'm not sure to give you

         22  a number, it's probably a pretty big number to do

         23  the kinds of things and to get them all, and even

         24  that, even if we got to them, it would take a period

         25  of time to do that.
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          2                 So, I just think it would be several

          3  double digit numbers of people, would be my guess.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well, you

          5  know, obviously that's something that the Council

          6  has to take a look at with the Administration. I

          7  mean, I know you can't ask us for additional staff,

          8  but I think we're going to do our best to analyze

          9  this.

         10                 Because, obviously, the quicker you

         11  get to these historic districts the better, because

         12  there are developers who are out there --

         13                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: -- Who are

         15  just destroying neighborhood-by-neighborhood. So,

         16  timing is extremely important.

         17                 If we were to come up with a figure

         18  for a certain number of staffers, and we put

         19  together a stipulation that this personnel would go

         20  specifically to do research on historic district

         21  applications; is that something that you would

         22  accept?

         23                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: But not naming

         24  the specific historic districts.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Okay. Was I
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          2  trying to pull a fast one?

          3                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I could see it

          4  coming. So, that would be the answer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: No, we still

          6  trust your judgment, Commissioner. But would you

          7  accept it?

          8                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: We would

          9  certainly consult with, as we always do, with

         10  members of this Committee, and others, who know a

         11  lot about the district, a lot about the history, a

         12  lot about what's out there, and that weighs heavily

         13  in what we decide to do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: But you would

         15  accept, if we gave you that stipulation, with a

         16  certain amount of additional personnel, that they

         17  could definitely be assigned to those projects,

         18  which you could determine that priority, but at

         19  least it would go towards if we designate it

         20  historic district research.

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Historic

         22  districts comprises enormous amount of the work done

         23  by MaryBeth Betts now, and so, of necessity -- that

         24  staff, if it were supplemented, added to, those

         25  people would spend a substantial part of their time
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          2  working on historic districts.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you to the

          5  Majority Leader. Whip. Majority Whip for sitting in.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Good morning,

          8  almost afternoon, Commissioner Tierney.

          9                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Good morning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do you know

         11  what I'm concerned about, and I've been harping on

         12  this for the last couple of years -- well, let me

         13  just ask you about staffing. We have a $3.7 million

         14  budget and 59 staff members, I think 52 full-time,

         15  seven part-time, 11 on research; is that correct?

         16                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes, that's

         17  correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do you have

         19  any African Americans in the top echelon? Because I

         20  don't see, every time they come here, I don't see --

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: There are

         22  African-Americans in the agency that deal --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm not

         24  talking about the ones at the door letting you in.

         25  I'm talking about on the top level. Because every
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          2  time you come here, I don't see anyone --

          3                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: It's something

          4  I'm obviously concerned about in all the hiring I do

          5  and outreach that I do, but the answer to your

          6  question is that you've just asked is no.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Why?

          8                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Everyone here

          9  has been --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I check with

         11  my chair to see if there's anybody with you that has

         12  some relatives way back -- I was going to say way

         13  black when, but I mean way back when, where they may

         14  have had some ancestral connections. We're trying to

         15  look at everybody just to make sure.

         16                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: The people here

         17  are -- that are with me at the table and the first

         18  row are people who are at the agency when I became

         19  Chairman of the agency, performing enormously

         20  important tasks, and performing them phenomenally

         21  well, within the constraints of everything we're

         22  talking about today and just the constraints

         23  generally of the challenges of the job. And they

         24  perform it with passion and commitment and I, I have

         25  not changed, made a change in those people during
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          2  that period of time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, I'm not

          4  suggesting --

          5                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: And that

          6  accounts for their presence here today.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But I'm saying

          8  that it is a problem.

          9                 What about the 11 researchers? How

         10  many of them are African American?

         11                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: There are

         12  African Americans in the agency, maybe in the

         13  Research Department, I'd have to check.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You don't have

         15  any? You don't have any of the 11? Is that what the

         16  answer is?

         17                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I'm sorry?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You don't have

         19  any researchers on the research of the 11th?

         20                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: No, not in that

         21  department.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Now, that's

         23  ridiculous. That's ridiculous. Now, you could make

         24  changes, and I'm not saying get rid of anyone, but

         25  that is the problem with landmarks, because what
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          2  I've been asking the Landmarks Commission to do is a

          3  very simple thing, when a property or a historic

          4  district is coinciding with slavery, like 1625 to

          5  1840 New York was a slave state, and thereafter,

          6  even after 1840 it continued for awhile. And all

          7  I've been asking the Commission to do is when

          8  properties come before us, since we're recording

          9  history, record any connection that they have to

         10  slavery or even to the abolishment of slavery, to

         11  stop leaving it out. And I see why we never get the

         12  request, because every time I ask that request and

         13  they come and they say no, I don't care when the

         14  property, the property could be 1,600, 1,700, they

         15  never mentioned anything about slavery, or

         16  participation and abolishment of slavery and nothing

         17  is totally excluded.

         18                 I'm almost finished, Commissioner.

         19                 And for us to have a Landmarks

         20  Commission, and has 11 researchers, no blacks, in

         21  the 21st century in New York City where 65 percent

         22  of the City is people of color, a new majority,

         23  that's ridiculous. That's really ridiculous and

         24  something should be done about that, because I've

         25  been very frustrated over the years with the
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          2  Commission. Every time I ask them just to include,

          3  and this wouldn't even have bearings on whether it's

          4  going to be landmarked or not, just to have the

          5  history recorded that this family or this estate or

          6  this community, what about the native Americans, did

          7  you have -- were there any history of any

          8  connections with Native Americans or

          9  African-American, or Africans who were brought here

         10  1625 with the Dutch, nothing. And this is why.

         11                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I think it is

         12  done.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Oh, yeah?

         14                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: And Mary Beth

         15  Betts is the head of the Department who makes those

         16  inquiries, and those, that is part of the research,

         17  the things that you're talking about. But if there

         18  is a finding that there is no connection, that we

         19  don't report --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Pardon me,

         21  Commissioner, but I think 11 whites might have some

         22  difficulty -- don't you think an African-American

         23  would be more connected?

         24                 I would like to know from the

         25  researcher, but who are you speaking to? Where are
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          2  you going to do this research? And what are some of

          3  your primary sources when you do go out to research

          4  these projects and to determine whether they're

          5  connected to slavery or not. Tell me some of your

          6  primary sources. And also if you could site some

          7  great African historians that are still around and

          8  the connections that you have to make this kind of a

          9  research that you think is going so well you just

         10  can't find it?

         11                 MS. BETTS: If I could answer that

         12  question? I'm Mary Beth Betts, Director of Research.

         13  First and foremost we go to the census records, and

         14  that record as best at that time, that we're

         15  determined in how people often chose to list

         16  themselves race. So, if you had a house, like 67

         17  Greenwich Street, which we designated, that was

         18  built in 1810 that Robert Dickey and his wife lived

         19  in along with several servants, we went through the

         20  census records and the people were listed as being

         21  Dickey and his family, a certain age and white

         22  ancestry, and then the other people, who we have to

         23  assume were servants in that household were also

         24  listed as being white.

         25                 So, Dickey, from the census records,
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          2  did not seem to own any slaves in 1810. So, that was

          3  where we go.

          4                 In a house that we have not yet

          5  designated, which is an 18th Century House, we went

          6  both to the census records and the court records to

          7  see if we could get any information. We looked at

          8  the wills to see what kind of information there was

          9  there.

         10                 So, we do use a number of primary

         11  resources when we are looking at very old buildings.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do you talk

         13  to, do you know any African American historians in

         14  this City that you consult with? Could you list with

         15  that you consulted with? Because maybe the census

         16  won't tell you the entire story of what's going on

         17  in that community, or in that district? You may not

         18  get the whole story. I don't know too many

         19  historians that just look at the census to determine

         20  what's happening, and there's a story around what's

         21  going on, the other primary sources that people

         22  consult other than the census. So, is there any

         23  other primary sources? Do you know, could you name

         24  some African American historians that you might --

         25                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: If I may
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          2  interject for a moment --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, let me

          4  finish. Can I get the research person and I'll get

          5  right back to you, Commissioner.

          6                 MS. BETTS: Well, Chris Moore is our

          7  Commissioner.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Pardon me?

          9                 MS. BETTS: I think you know our

         10  Commissioner, Christopher Moore, who works at the

         11  Schomburg.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I know

         13  Christopher.

         14                 MS. BETTS: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Who is very,

         16  very upset with your Commission because of some

         17  misinformation around a particular project.

         18                 MS. BETTS: He's never communicated

         19  that directly to me, okay?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay.

         21                 It did happen in one of our meetings,

         22  but that's another issue.

         23                 But the point I'm trying to make,

         24  Commissioner, and I think you get it, that this is

         25  inadequate. If we really want to get to the true
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          2  story of what happened in New York, and including

          3  those Africans who were brought here by the Dutch in

          4  1625 and remained enslaved until 1840. They say 1827

          5  but it went beyond that, and their story, the story

          6  of Native Americans, and I just think something has

          7  to happen. Either we have to talk to you about

          8  possible volunteers to come and help with t he

          9  research, or some staffing positions. You shouldn't

         10  have 11 researchers. You couldn't find 11

         11  African-Americans?

         12                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: All these jobs

         13  were posted. They're civil servant --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I understand

         15  all of that. But, you know, people do make changes

         16  when they come into office. If we had maintained

         17  that, then we'll never have any diversity because

         18  commissioner after commissioner -- what if the

         19  Commissioner before you was very exclusive of us and

         20  you came in and just said, well, I'm not going to

         21  make any changes, so you continue it, and then after

         22  your tenure, the next Commissioner comes in, I'm not

         23  going to make any changes, then we'll maintain the

         24  status quo, which is wrong, Commissioner. It's wrong

         25  to have 11 researchers and not one African American,
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          2  not one Latino, not one Asian, this is wrong and it

          3  shouldn't exist. And I don't care how it looked when

          4  you came in here, it should not exist in New York

          5  City, and that is wrong. And I think that's why when

          6  we come to these landmarkings, we don't get the true

          7  story. And the Census track is not going to give you

          8  everything you need around what's going on in the

          9  history of New York City. You can't just look at the

         10  census.

         11                 MS. BETTS: We don't.

         12                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: We don't just

         13  look at the census.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, that's

         15  all I heard.

         16                 MS. BETTS: Well, you didn't hear

         17  about the court cases and --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Court cases.

         19  Talk to African American historians, talk to some of

         20  the institutions. I can give you a whole list of

         21  them that could help you with research, because

         22  there's much -- I can't believe some of the projects

         23  that come here, they just have no connection. And

         24  not just the family, whether they had servants and

         25  stuff like that. What was happening outside of the
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          2  house at that time? What was going on in the

          3  community. If you say something was around in 1650,

          4  1657, 1680, there had to be slavery, so you have to

          5  mention that. You have to mention that, that it was

          6  slavery and they didn't participate in it. They were

          7  nice people and didn't have them. But mentioning it.

          8  Mention it.

          9                 MR. BETTS: I would recommend that you

         10  read our St. Pauls Avenue, Stapleton Heights

         11  Historic District, which does talk about slavery and

         12  how certain members of that community sheltered

         13  African Americans during the draft.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right, but

         15  much too little. There are too many projects that

         16  have come by here where it's never mentioned. Even

         17  though these projects were during that period, and I

         18  think it should be mentioned every time we're doing

         19  research.

         20                 I thank you, Mr. Chair -- Madam

         21  Chair, I'm sorry. I was getting into it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, clearly, but

         23  Mr. Chair does not really work. Get him some

         24  glasses, man.

         25                 What's clear is that I think there
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          2  are two separate issues here, one leads into the

          3  other but the staffing issue is one. Also you'll

          4  know, as has happened in the past, that when you

          5  come to us with a project to the Landmarks Committee

          6  and to the Land Use Committee, that these questions

          7  are going to be brought up, and I'm sure that you're

          8  aware of that, and now, if not, you're forewarned

          9  that it is going to happen on every project that

         10  comes up that there might be possibilities with

         11  these issues, okay?

         12                 And I'd like to ask Rosie to vote.

         13  Council Member Mendez, would you like to vote on the

         14  Land Use agenda?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye on all.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Council Member Yvette Clarke.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         20  much, Madam Chair. And I have to concur with the

         21  comments made by my colleague Charles Barron. I do

         22  think it's important that we put the historic

         23  landmark preservation into its proper context,

         24  particularly given the history of New York City. So,

         25  I'll leave it there.
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          2                 My question goes back to concurring

          3  with the Chair of Landmarks and Tony Avella around

          4  how we can look at the Commission, and I guess the

          5  delegation of districts versus individual sites

          6  versus commercial versus residential.

          7                 I'm guessing that the backlog tends

          8  to be the challenge in the residential district

          9  category.

         10                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: It's a mix. I

         11  mean, the backlog is more accentuated in the

         12  residential district category because of more

         13  buildings. So, it becomes a heavier weighted

         14  challenge. But there are enormous number of

         15  whatever, the 300 odd requests for evaluation each

         16  year. Many of them, a significant number, are

         17  individual things. Some commercial, some churches,

         18  some residential, but then you might have it, as

         19  Councilman Avella said, there is a proposed Broadway

         20  Flushing District that has 1,300 buildings in it, so

         21  that puts a big amount, a lot on the scales.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And does the

         23  Commission sort of identify maybe at the end or the

         24  beginning of each fiscal year sort of a menu of what

         25  you'd like to accomplish in that year?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And how do you

          4  go about tracking the progress on that?

          5                 And is that menu created based on a

          6  static budgetary concern, and a static staffing? In

          7  other words, if there were a real concerted effort,

          8  in other words, the noise just got so loud from the

          9  Council --

         10                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: That you

         12  wanted to expedite things quicker.

         13                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Would you

         15  anticipate that in the next fiscal year by saying,

         16  you know what? This is the year we, you know, add an

         17  additional ten folks, just to deal with what has

         18  been a systemic challenge for us.

         19                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure. The first

         20  answer is, the answer to the first part is, yes, we

         21  do sit down and plan one year, at least one year out

         22  for the fiscal year, and then from my point of view,

         23  two, three, four years, where we're really going and

         24  where we want to have, to be sure that we're being

         25  fair and approached in a way, approached in terms
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          2  of, as I said at the outset, throughout the City, so

          3  that no one borough or neighborhood or whatever is

          4  beginning a disproportionate number of or amount of

          5  attention or designations. So, we do set that forth

          6  at the beginning of the year, not only for that

          7  fiscal year. And basically it tends, the year-out

          8  planning tends to be premised on what the budget is

          9  likely to be, what's in the Executive Budget. And

         10  there's also a wish list, of course, if we had A, B

         11  and C, here are the next five things we would do.

         12                 So, it's ready to go. If what you

         13  describe were somehow to take place in another

         14  agency, and I was heading that other -- then, yes,

         15  we would be ready to go, provided there were room to

         16  put those people somewhere.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, just one

         18  final question, Madam Chair; that is, I'm trying to

         19  understand the process. You basically do an

         20  assessment of the applications that come in, so it's

         21  not a first come, first serve basis?

         22                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Not at all.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I think that's

         24  something that the public really needs to know,

         25  because I know I've gotten like, you know, calls in
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          2  the middle of the night, we put in our application

          3  before they did, you know, types of things.

          4                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You know,

          6  don't you have any clout around there? You know, it

          7  becomes that type of, you know, that can mean a

          8  reelection issue, you know what I'm saying? So, I

          9  just wanted to sort of for the record, you know, let

         10  folks know.

         11                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes, I

         12  understand. You can call me early the next morning

         13  after you get that call, and then I'll work on it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. Thank

         15  you very much. I'll just always bring to your

         16  attention the beautiful Victorian Flatbush Fist

         17  Terrace.

         18                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I'm very

         22  excited about that. That is on this list and is

         23  going to be -- it's in my sights and we're really

         24  looking forward to working with you on that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Because
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          2  they've been monitoring the website, which I just

          3  thought you should know.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just so my

          5  colleagues know, and I do apologize to my

          6  colleagues, but I didn't realize there would be so

          7  many people that want to ask questions, so I should

          8  have in the beginning probably limited it more. I

          9  hate when towards the end, as Councilman Felder

         10  pointed out, that happens. And I'll know next year

         11  that we all have a lot of questions. Or next

         12  hearing.

         13                 There is one, two, three, four, five

         14  more folks that -- six more folks to ask questions.

         15  So, if you could just keep that in mind as you're

         16  going forward, I would appreciate that. The DoITT

         17  Commissioner is due to be here at 12.

         18                 Council Member Garodnick.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair.

         21                 Commissioner, welcome back. It's nice

         22  to see you again.

         23                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Nice to see

         24  you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Just one
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          2  quick point on the race issue that Council Member

          3  Barron brought up. Obviously to have any division or

          4  subdivision within an agency that is all white is a

          5  troubling one, and if it is a matter of outreach and

          6  you say that your applications are what they are,

          7  then maybe it's a matter of broadening the outreach

          8  and doing, taking additional steps to correct that.

          9                 I mean, we obviously live in a

         10  multi-cultural and multi-ethnic City, and for that

         11  reason, I also wanted to take exception to one of

         12  the things that my colleague said, Council Member

         13  Barron, because while I do think that it is

         14  troubling that there would be a subdivision within

         15  Landmarks that is all white --

         16                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Can I take

         17  issue with the all white characterization?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, maybe

         19  we misheard it then.

         20                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I'm not really

         21  comfortable having conversations that break it down

         22  like that, but it's not all white. It's not an all

         23  white. It's not an all white department.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Then I'm

         25  going to have to ask how you describe it then.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: There are

          3  Latinos representation in that Department. There are

          4  obviously men and women, not having to do with it.

          5  My response was there are no African-Americans in

          6  that Department.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, re

          8  responded back to you. The reason why I made that

          9  statement, because he responded back to you that it

         10  was all white, and I didn't hear you correct it

         11  then. So, my apologize for that.

         12                 But the one point that I will make in

         13  response to Council Member Barron is that I do not

         14  think that it's appropriate to suggest that in a

         15  multi-cultural and multi-ethnic and multi-racial

         16  City that only somebody who is black actually

         17  researched the issues that we're talking about here.

         18  Obviously somebody who is Asian or Latino or white

         19  or Native American could actually be sensitive to

         20  the very issues that we're discussing here.

         21                 So, I know he has left but I did want

         22  to make that point. Now I just want to bring it back

         23  to the budget, and ask you, on the subject of

         24  timing, and the consideration of individual or

         25  historic landmarks, Council Member Chair Lappin
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          2  asked you the question about how much time does it

          3  take and your response was it varies from

          4  project-to-project, correct? Is there an internal

          5  measure that you all use to keep track of how much

          6  time it is taking from one item to the next? How do

          7  you measure it internally? Because I would assume

          8  that that exists, and let me know.

          9                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure, it does,

         10  and MaryBeth could give you that. I'm not sure she

         11  has the material here in front of us, but she knows

         12  exactly of the people in her Department, she knows

         13  the total inventory, who is working on what, how

         14  long it is taking on each project, and would be able

         15  to extrapolate from that the amount of person hours

         16  that it takes to do X, Y or Z designations, whether

         17  it be an individual designation. So, we would be

         18  able to give you that, furnish you with that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: But at the

         20  end of the day, do you look back and you say, okay,

         21  here is a property at X street and wherever, and

         22  say, here is how much time it took from the point

         23  that we got a request to research this to final

         24  designation, and do you have internal listings which

         25  basically set forth how long it takes as a general
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          2  matter? Because that would be useful it seems.

          3                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Useful to me.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And also to

          5  us.

          6                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: To management.

          7  I don't have it with me today, and I'm not sure it's

          8  compiled in exactly the way that you talk about it,

          9  but I think it could usefully be. It's done, and we

         10  measure things that way, and MaryBeth would know on

         11  each, she could go through it person-by-person and

         12  project-by-project and give you all that, but I'm

         13  not sure what the next step would be to abstract it

         14  and say, and give you the formulation you look for.

         15  But it might be useful to get that.

         16                 MS. BETTS: I can just give you some

         17  general rules of thumb.

         18                 Anything that is pre Buildings

         19  Department, so before the existence of Buildings

         20  Department, will take longer to research because

         21  there are many more resources that you have to go to

         22  in order to determine, you know, the appropriate

         23  information of, you know, when it was built, who it

         24  was built for, et cetera, and unfortunately,

         25  anything that is outside of Manhattan also takes
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          2  longer to research because the Buildings Department

          3  information are not as well organized. There are

          4  many more steps that we have to take to extract that

          5  information, and we managed during Chair Tierney's

          6  tenure to establish I think good working

          7  relationships with the other Buildings Department in

          8  the other boroughs. But it does take a bit longer.

          9  For instance, in Staten Island there was a fire that

         10  destroyed all pre-1907 Buildings records, so we have

         11  to go look at tax records at the municipal archives.

         12  We look at conveyances and things like that. So,

         13  there are just a lot more steps for that.

         14                 So, the easiest thing for us to

         15  research, the quickest thing for us to research is

         16  unfortunately a Manhattan building that dates to

         17  after the Buildings Department. And then things that

         18  fall outside do start to take longer.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well, of

         20  course, the reason I am asking this question is that

         21  the biggest issue that I hear about Landmarks is

         22  speed and speed of consideration, speed of

         23  designation, and, so, to have that information, to

         24  know really internally to measure how long it's

         25  taking, and also for us to be able to perform our
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          2  oversight function, it's important.

          3                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Because

          5  from what I'm hearing from you, Commissioner, is

          6  that these things take, as you described it, longer

          7  than you would like them to take, and also you said

          8  that it feels overwhelming at points, and that

          9  raises real concerns about staffing levels, even

         10  though we are bigger than those three other cities,

         11  Washington, Philadelphia and Chicago combined, we

         12  may not be big enough, considering what we have. And

         13  in that regard, I just wanted to ask you again, I

         14  asked you the last time you were here, suggested it,

         15  did you want to respond to that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: No, you're

         17  getting ready to say I didn't answer you last time?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: No, no.

         19                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: On the

         21  issue, I raised the issue of a volunteer program,

         22  and reinstating a volunteer program to try to bring

         23  preservationists into this process and to try to use

         24  the resources which are out there in a City like New

         25  York for people with great interest in history and
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          2  the ability to identify the distinguishing

          3  characteristics which would make a landmark building

          4  or landmark district; any progress on reinstituting

          5  or instituting a program which would bring

          6  volunteers more into the designation process?

          7                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: We'll have

          8  summer interns, but you're going beyond summer

          9  interns. I mean, on a continuing basis.

         10                 MaryBeth points out we have somewhat

         11  of a space problem. We should work through that and

         12  maybe there's a way to do it off site and to try to

         13  utilize the kinds of resources that, you're right,

         14  do exist out there for that purpose.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: It seems to

         16  me like an obvious way to help alleviate some of the

         17  burden, and obviously it would require significant

         18  oversight --

         19                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: It does.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: By you. And

         21  it is an expenditure of time and energy and

         22  resource, as well, but there are great resources out

         23  there that are able to support you in this.

         24                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: But we already

         25  do it, I'm advised, and not as formal a way as
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          2  you're suggesting, but there is a huge network of

          3  voluntary Fist Terrace (phonetic), the community out

          4  there performing enormous service in terms of

          5  providing us. We work together with Fist Terrace.

          6  We're doing it in Crown Heights, we do it in other

          7  historic areas, where I just don't think of them in

          8  the same way as you've just cited. But there are

          9  neighborhood associations, preservation groups, in

         10  those communities that work with us that go

         11  door-to-door, that provide us with their research,

         12  that we then, as you say, it all then has to be

         13  checked and doublechecked and put into our database

         14  and so on, but that all of those resources, those

         15  resources, which I am reminded it's similar to what

         16  you're suggesting, a little less -- it's more

         17  project-by-project, if you will, but they are

         18  incredibly important for people who live and work in

         19  those areas and care passionately about them, are

         20  enormously helpful to cooperate with us as we go

         21  forward in those neighborhoods.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

         23  Commissioner.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         25  Dickens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair. And thank you, Commissioner, for your

          4  time and testimony.

          5                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And welcome

          7  back.

          8                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: But I have

         10  two short questions and one kind of a statement,

         11  that 21 years ago landmarks did have a Commissioner,

         12  Drew Norman, who --

         13                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Absolutely. I

         14  know him well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And just for

         16  the record, that was 21 years ago. And a suggestion

         17  that Dr. Yosef Ben Yohanen (phonetic), are you

         18  familiar with him?

         19                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I'm sorry?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Dr. Yosef Ben

         21  Yohanen. He taught a class at CUNY specifically

         22  dealing for historians as it relates to historic

         23  preservation, and that might be he's still alive and

         24  here in New York and that might be a person to reach

         25  out to.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: There's also

          4  a preservationist, a woman of color, at Abyssinian

          5  Baptist Church, and there's a Dr. Morada, who is an

          6  Asian American, who is a cultural historian, all of

          7  which are in my district in Harlem.

          8                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Great. Those

          9  are very helpful suggestions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Those are

         11  suggestions.

         12                 And also to piggyback on my

         13  colleague, maybe you could look at a fellowship

         14  program at City College, one of City Colleges, that

         15  might assist in the growth potential of people of

         16  color being interested in preservationists.

         17                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Question:

         19  There's an inordinate length of time for approval of

         20  work permits from the time of application through

         21  public hearings, and there needs to be a shorter

         22  time length, plus as part of that process, there is

         23  frequently a confusion between a landmarks and DOB.

         24                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: When dealing
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          2  with these work orders and/or violations.

          3                 Is there a plan that you are putting

          4  in place that will help to alleviate this so that

          5  people who are interested in purchasing but must do

          6  some changes in development can indeed do so in a

          7  shorter span of time and work through the maze

          8  between you and DOB?

          9                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure. I hope

         10  there is not a maze, but unfortunately --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: There is a

         12  maze.

         13                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: There probably

         14  is, which is disturbing.

         15                 But I want to ask Mark Silberman, who

         16  is the Counsel, may I, to summarize very briefly how

         17  we work with DOB in terms of violations and lifting

         18  them so that people can get on with their work.

         19                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes, and I just want

         20  to make sure I understand the question specifically

         21  for buildings with violations, doing work?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: No, it's

         23  two-fold. It was about buildings with violations

         24  where they have already received approval, work

         25  permit, and there has been a violation and a stop
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          2  order has been put in place. There's a long period

          3  of time in getting you out to look at that work and

          4  getting that work approval permit back in place, and

          5  there frequently is a maze of confusion between you

          6  and the DOB when this work is going on. You say one

          7  thing, DOB says something else, particularly as it

          8  relates to plumbing and electrical specifications.

          9                 And then the third part of that same

         10  question is just the approval, to seek the approval

         11  of a work permit.

         12                 So, it's really three parts to that.

         13                 MR. SILBERMAN: Okay, I better be

         14  succinct and answer all those questions.

         15                 With respect to violations, what

         16  happens -- if a Buildings Department permit is

         17  issued incorrectly, meaning that it was issued

         18  without landmarks first reviewing the work, stop

         19  work orders are issued and then landmarks has to go

         20  out and then they have to come back to landmarks to

         21  get our permit first, and I believe that's where a

         22  lot of the delay comes from, people have to come

         23  back to us, and if it turns out, for example, people

         24  on a storefront, that they need to change the design

         25  of that storefront to make it a landmark compliant
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          2  storefront, then in essence they're going to need to

          3  go, once it goes through our process, which may

          4  require public hearing in some instances, in some

          5  cases it may be a staff permit, they then have to go

          6  back to buildings.

          7                 So, yes, to the extent that someone

          8  has gone to buildings first and gotten a permit,

          9  that's going to delay the process a lot. We try very

         10  hard to resolve violations at the staff level,

         11  because it's more efficient for everyone involved.

         12  Ninety-five percent of the Commission's permits

         13  applications, including many violations are handled

         14  at staff without the necessity for a public hearing.

         15                 But Buildings, in the Department of

         16  Buildings computer system the field that says is it

         17  a landmark, and we go in there and mark all of that

         18  yes.

         19                 Buildings should not be issuing

         20  permits with respect any land, property that is

         21  landmarked without us first issuing the permit.

         22                 With respect to the plumbing and

         23  electricity permits, there is, quite frankly, some

         24  confusion for the following reason: by law the

         25  Landmarks Commission, the landmarks, the law says
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          2  Buildings cannot issue any permits, interior,

          3  exterior, whatever, without first looking at that

          4  work. Many, many years ago, late eighties and

          5  nineties, the Landmarks Commission and the Buildings

          6  Department entered into an agreement whereby purely

          7  interior, electrical and plumbing type, that kind of

          8  work, did not need to come to the landmarks first.

          9                 However, because, and I think there's

         10  a communication problem in Buildings often, that's

         11  where the issue comes in, and we've been trying very

         12  hard to work it through. Often times we have to make

         13  calls, we have to send e-mails to make sure people

         14  understand, but just so you understand, in some ways

         15  when that confusion arises, it's because people are

         16  in fact, the Buildings Department inspectors, are

         17  looking at the computer, seeing it's landmark and

         18  saying wait a minute, I need to get landmarks

         19  approval first.

         20                 So, we have to improve the

         21  communication, but in some ways it's a good sign

         22  that the Buildings Department people are in fact

         23  making sure they're not doing something wrong with

         24  respect to landmarks.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Yes, because
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          2  there is certainly a discrepancy because what

          3  happens is, someone buys a building that's in a

          4  historic district, the building itself is not

          5  landmarked, it's in a historic district, and

          6  although you have this agreement, what happens is

          7  the HVAC system does impact upon the exterior

          8  because frequently holes have to be made.

          9                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct. Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And the

         11  developer is caught in the middle between DOB and

         12  you and between this maze and then the developer is

         13  issued a stop work order, has no idea what to do,

         14  how to alleviate it, and how to get started. And the

         15  financing has been severely impacted from the bank.

         16  So, it puts a severe onus, and I'm now talking about

         17  individual owners that have bought, I'm not talking

         18  about big developers. So, something needs to be done

         19  to alleviate this, because I know this is going on

         20  in the St. Nicholas Historic District and the Mount

         21  Morris Park Historic District, and I can just go on.

         22                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I'm glad you

         23  brought it to my attention, and we will work to try

         24  to make it work better. It should work better. It's

         25  not a way to treat the public.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Maybe you can get

          3  together with the Council member.

          4                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Love to, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And discuss it

          6  further.

          7                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That would be

          8  great.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         10  much, Madam.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         12                 So, figure out who the contact is

         13  before they leave.

         14                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Although the

         16  Commissioner will return your calls.

         17                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Always.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         19  Seabrook.

         20                 And I want to acknowledge

         21  Commissioner Bergmann, who was in the room a minute

         22  ago. He just stepped out. He was here. He is the new

         23  Commissioner of DoITT waiting patiently.

         24                 So, Council Member Seabrook.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you
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          2  very much, Madam Chair. That issue that the

          3  Councilwoman brought about, I think I brought to you

          4  all about eight months, six, eight months ago, about

          5  the same problem in the same area that a person was

          6  having --

          7                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: We will invite

          8  you to that meeting and we'll try to work through

          9  it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Well, you

         11  did resolve it.

         12                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: You came to our

         13  office --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I came to

         15  your office, but it was the same situation that

         16  happens with people in AC units and so forth, so it

         17  becomes a real problem and it keeps things going,

         18  and I think that there needs to be some way of

         19  dealing with that because it is a real issue, and it

         20  just keeps people in a maze.

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Just one

         23  question, because I think you've certainly done a

         24  good job where you are, but the concern that was

         25  raised by Councilman Barron and Garodnick, perhaps
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          2  you can provide this Committee and myself as Chair

          3  of the Civil Rights and EEO areas of concentration,

          4  human rights, and executive member of the black and

          5  Latino and Asian Caucus, if you can provide us with

          6  the staffing and the breakdown so that if we make a

          7  mistake by saying lily white, and perhaps you can

          8  clarify that --

          9                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But there

         11  needs to be, and if there is any contracting work

         12  out, is there any participation by Minority and

         13  Women-Owned businesses, those things that we need to

         14  know so that we can comment, and so that if it's not

         15  there, perhaps the goals that certainly this Mayor

         16  would want to reach would be something that you

         17  could do. So perhaps you can provide us with that.

         18  That would be very helpful to do that.

         19                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         21  very much, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         23  Felder.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         25  much. First, I have two comments, three I should
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          2  say, very quick ones. First of all, I want to

          3  congratulate Council Member Lappin for taking over

          4  the Landmarks Committee. I've heard wonderful

          5  things. In fact, some of the statements by the

          6  advocates have been that finally somebody who

          7  understands landmarks is running the Committee, and

          8  I agree wholeheartedly, there's nothing to argue

          9  about.

         10                 In terms of the hearings that we have

         11  had today, on the issues of diversity in hiring, I

         12  think my colleague Council Member Garodnick has

         13  already addressed that about ways to be able to try

         14  to get more people, you know, at an agency from

         15  different parts of the City. But I do take exception

         16  with the remarks that my colleague Charles Barron,

         17  Council Member Barron made, and he made at great

         18  length, about the lack of detail or research into

         19  the history of slavery with landmarking.

         20                 I don't think that there's any member

         21  of the City Council that would argue that it's

         22  important for people throughout this City and the

         23  world and for generations to come to understand what

         24  the impact of slavery has had and continues to have

         25  and will continue to have for many years to come.
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          2                 And the purpose of history is not

          3  just to read about it, it's obviously to learn, to

          4  make sure the things in the future are different.

          5                 But even though I don't know anything

          6  about landmarking, I can tell you what I don't know

          7  dictates to me in my mind that this absolutely has

          8  nothing to do with landmarking. The discussion about

          9  slavery, it's my turn now, we're not talking about

         10  whether a place where slavery took place should be

         11  landmarked. That obviously I agree entirely. We're

         12  talking about whether every time something is

         13  landmarked, there should be an inclusion, a

         14  discussion about slavery or if there's no slavery,

         15  no discussion. I would argue with you that if that's

         16  the case, there should be a discussion about Irish

         17  American history in that area, and there should be

         18  discussion, I'm sorry, a discussion about Italian

         19  American history in New York in that area, a

         20  discussion about Jews and Asians and others. I'm

         21  telling you that from everything that I have read

         22  regarding the regulations, the research or

         23  everything else that is involved in landmarking a

         24  property. I repeat again, if some question is

         25  whether something that it should be taken into
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          2  consideration whether a building or some place was a

          3  place where slavery took place, and if you said to

          4  me there was no other reason to landmark it, I would

          5  say absolutely. That's a very important point to

          6  make sure that people know that in this City, on

          7  that spot, slavery was taking place at a time that

          8  obviously it shouldn't take place. And that should

          9  be considered as something in question of

         10  landmarking. But the landmarking process, the

         11  research they've done and everything else, there's a

         12  lot more that I can give you that will certainly not

         13  be able to be done with the budget that you have.

         14  That's for sure. And I'm not sure it should be done

         15  as part of the landmarking.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, I have one

         18  final question just to wrap everything up, because

         19  the Commissioner is waiting patiently and I

         20  appreciate it, Commissioner Bergmann.

         21                 There is over a million dollars in

         22  landmarking fees that are coming in. You, unlike

         23  other agencies, not all of them, but some of them,

         24  do not have it going right back into your budget. To

         25  tag onto some of the questions of my colleagues,
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          2  especially about the other boroughs, and including

          3  Manhattan, and also some of the research is done in

          4  the other boroughs, if we advocated for that money

          5  to go back into your budget, first of all, we'd have

          6  to make sure that it's not cut from somewhere else,

          7  otherwise it's a useless practice of futility.

          8                 But second, would you be able to

          9  utilize that money and how would you utilize it? You

         10  could think about it, too, before the next hearing.

         11                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But is there a

         13  reason, the historical perspective, as to why it

         14  goes into the general budget, as opposed to going

         15  into your budget?

         16                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: I am not

         17  familiar with how fees in other agencies' buildings

         18  department --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Some of them go

         20  back into the budget. Some of them go back into the

         21  operating budget of the agencies, some of them go

         22  back into the general budget. But there is no reason

         23  that you know of?

         24                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Not

         25  necessarily, no. Nothing that I know of

                                                            84

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  specifically. But there's a connection, though,

          3  between the amount of the fee raising program and

          4  our -- over the last three years, as I said earlier,

          5  being held harmless in the cuts and the pegs and all

          6  the rest, because we had implemented a fee system,

          7  so that there is some aid, some benefit. But dollar

          8  for dollar, I couldn't say. That's something OMB --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well, you're still

         10  cut I think about $500,000 or something, right?

         11  Aren't you cut from 2006?

         12                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: No. I don't

         13  think we were. I think that's part of the --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have the 2006

         15  modified as 4,214,000 and I have the preliminary as

         16  3, 750,000.

         17                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: That's the roll

         18  over.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's the roll

         20  over.

         21                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's the roll

         23  over, I'm sorry.

         24                 Okay, so we'll have to look into

         25  that. For the next hearing, which is like in a month
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          2  or two, if you think about the answer to that

          3  question, that would be great.

          4                 Commissioner Tierney, we appreciate

          5  your time.

          6                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And your effort

          8  today of you and your entire staff. Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 COMMISSIONER TIERNEY: Thank you all.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Meeting adjourned

         13  for that portion.

         14                 We're now going to do DoITT.

         15  Landmarks is done.

         16                 As many of you know, Commissioner

         17  Menchini has left the Administration, Commissioner

         18  Ron Bergmann has taken his place as Acting

         19  Commissioner, I understand. I'm going to wait til I

         20  have some order in the room.

         21                 The Commissioner deserves all of our

         22  respect, but I know people are coming and going

         23  because it was running late. So, thank you.

         24                 Commissioner, we welcome you. We

         25  welcome you to the Council. I'm going to introduce
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          2  the Council members that are here. Some of them you

          3  may know already, some of them you may not. Auggie,

          4  of course, knows all of them from his history. We

          5  rely on him as well for counsel. And this is Annabel

          6  Palma, Council Member Robert Jackson, Dan Garodnick.

          7  They're all Council members. Dan Garodnick, Enez

          8  (sic) Dickens --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Inez.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Inez Dickens. I

         11  always say Enez Dickens, but thank you, Simcha, for

         12  the correction.

         13                 Andrew Lanza, Simcha Felder, and if I

         14  can introduce the Co-Chair Gale Brewer, who will

         15  make an opening statement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: (Not using

         17  microphone.)

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Great. We'll wait

         19  til then.

         20                 Commissioner, we had a lot of

         21  outstanding issues with Commissioner Menchini. I'm

         22  sure that your able counsels have mentioned them to

         23  you. As Chair of this Committee and also as the

         24  Council Member in Forest Hills Rego Park and Kew

         25  Gardens, I had many concerns with the 3-1-1 system,
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          2  and with many of the issues on Phase I and II of the

          3  project that hopefully you will go into in your

          4  testimony.

          5                 I'll wait to hear your testimony and

          6  then ask some questions, but I was wondering if

          7  Chair Brewer had any comments to start out with?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          9  much, Council Member Katz, Chairperson Katz. And

         10  welcome Mr. Acting Interim Commissioner Bergmann.

         11                 And I want to say a couple of things.

         12  First of all to say that there are many capital

         13  issues I think that we'll be talking about in terms

         14  of current capital projects and future. I know that

         15  as Chair of the Committee we've been trying to think

         16  of some broad public scope projects, like trying to

         17  get broadband inexpensively and efficiently around

         18  the City, and I know that you and Economic

         19  Development Corporation have been thinking along the

         20  same lines, so we'll talk more about some of the

         21  capital projects.

         22                 Second, I want to say in terms of

         23  3-1-1, I know that we have a Local Law 47, which the

         24  Mayor signed some time ago, and to the credit of

         25  your agency, you have been working on the data that
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          2  would be required, particularly for a Councilperson

          3  from Forest Hills, but also for the community boards

          4  and the Council Members and the public to know what

          5  the data is, and I know that it's very voluminous,

          6  and I appreciate that on March 30th we'll be meeting

          7  with any Council members who would like to join us,

          8  but certainly the managers of the community boards.

          9                 I left a Borough Board meeting this

         10  morning, and before I left the door, the managers

         11  want to know, I think this is almost number one on

         12  their issue list, in terms of concerns, is 3-1-1.

         13                 And I just want to mention that

         14  thanks to the Chair, one of the biggest issues in

         15  the country, we sometimes don't think that there is

         16  a country out there, but is an issue of local

         17  control, in terms of the telecommunication act.

         18  That's a very broad way to state that I just came

         19  back from the National League of Cities Technology

         20  Committee, which I'm a member of, with cities around

         21  the United States, and everybody is facing local

         22  franchise concerns as the process in Washington is

         23  marked up at the Commerce Committee.

         24                 So, we look forward to passing I

         25  think a bill that, or resolution that you would
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          2  certainly support that advocates for keeping our

          3  public access channels. Obviously the wonderful work

          4  that you do, in terms of the municipal channels and

          5  I hope that around the country similar efforts are

          6  going on that Congress and the President listen.

          7                 I think actually there is nothing

          8  more important personally in this country than our

          9  highways to the future, which is what this broadband

         10  fight, and it is a fight, is all going on.

         11                 So, that's to say that there are many

         12  positive aspects to what we have accomplished

         13  together over time. We look forward to also the bill

         14  that passed in December, implementing the broadband

         15  taskforce around the City, and now we'll just

         16  continue discussions specifically around the budget.

         17                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You have testimony,

         19  Commissioner?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Good

         21  afternoon, Chairpersons Brewer and Katz, and members

         22  of the City Council Committees on Technology In

         23  Government and Land Use.

         24                 My name is Ron Bergmann, and I am the

         25  Acting Commissioner of the Department of
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          2  Information, Technology and Telecommunications, or

          3  DoITT.

          4                 With me today is Margery Brown,

          5  deputy Commissioner for Administration and Finance,

          6  and Agostino Cangemi, General Counsel and Deputy

          7  Commissioner for Franchise Administration.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  testify about some of the many initiatives in which

         10  DoITT is involved, as well as our goals for the year

         11  to come.

         12                 As I begin, I'd like to acknowledge

         13  former Commissioner Gino Menchini for his many

         14  contributions to the agency during his tenure at

         15  DoITT. Among his accomplishments, Gino shaped DoITT

         16  into a true client-centered agency, something we are

         17  committed to continuing going forward.

         18                 The 3-1-1 Citizen Service Center has

         19  contributed to Mayor Bloomberg's vision of a City

         20  government that is open, responsive and accountable.

         21  Since its inception just over three years ago, 3-1-1

         22  celebrated its third anniversary on March 9th. We

         23  have handled over 32 million calls, including nearly

         24  10 million calls in Fiscal 2006 to date.

         25                 As you know, all calls are answered
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          2  by a live operator 24 hours a day, seven days a

          3  week, with service available in over 170 languages.

          4                 Our service levels remain high, with

          5  the average speed of answered calls below 30

          6  seconds.

          7                 3-1-1 now receives nearly 50,000

          8  calls per day with daily call volume recently

          9  reaching as high as 241,000 during the first day of

         10  the December Transit strike, 137,000 during

         11  February's recent record snow storm.

         12                 By providing one easy-to-remember

         13  number for the public, 3-1-1's primary focus, the

         14  ability to accurately report the information from

         15  the calls 3-1-1 receives is equally important.

         16                 We were pleased last year to work

         17  with Council Member Brewer in crafting local law 57

         18  of 2005 which Mayor Bloomberg signed into law in

         19  May. This law requires DoITT to issue periodic

         20  reports to the City Council Speaker, the Public

         21  Advocate and community boards, regarding data

         22  collected by the 3-1-1 citizen service center.

         23                 Making agency performance data

         24  available is an important way to ensure open

         25  government and increase agency accountability, and
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          2  we believe that this law provides the public with

          3  valuable information while the protecting the

          4  privacy and confidentiality of callers to 3-1-1.

          5                 As we testified prior to its passage,

          6  the time line set by Local Law 47 for the reports to

          7  be issued was an aggressive one. In working to

          8  implement the provisions of the law since its

          9  passage, we found that providing this level of

         10  reporting detail a challenging task requiring

         11  substantial investment in systems development and

         12  staff workload.

         13                 We are now in the final stages of

         14  creating these reports and expect that they will be

         15  released next month. We are working with Council

         16  Member Brewer to coordinate a meeting with community

         17  boards within the next few weeks, as she said, it's

         18  March 30th, to discuss the content and format of the

         19  reports.

         20                 After posting we will conduct regular

         21  meetings to continue to gain feedback.

         22                 This model will supplement the

         23  community outreach we conducted, and will continue

         24  since the beginning of 3-1-1.

         25                 We expect that the dialogue at these
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          2  meetings will be relevant and productive. We are

          3  just about to launch a 3-1-1 analytics project that

          4  will provide City agencies with enhanced management

          5  information tools needed to better anticipate demand

          6  and manage operational performance.

          7                 This project will also facilitate

          8  preparation of monthly reports on 3-1-1 data as

          9  required by Local Law 47, and statistics will be

         10  accessible to elected officials, community groups

         11  and the public.

         12                 In addition, as you know, last

         13  November Mayor Bloomberg announced an ambitious

         14  initiative to be undertaken at the 3-1-1 citizen

         15  service center. The enhanced 3-1-1 Initiative

         16  involves expanding 3-1-1's current role to include

         17  access to comprehensive human services information

         18  and referral.

         19                 By leveraging the infrastructure of

         20  the 3-1-1 environment, we will be able to include a

         21  wider array of services provided by government

         22  agencies and community-based organizations. Through

         23  3-1-1, callers will be able to speak to specialized

         24  call-takers trained to assess their human service

         25  needs.
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          2                 These specialists will provide

          3  callers with the appropriate information to

          4  referrals from the database, including more than

          5  2,500 non-profit health and human service agencies,

          6  operating at 15,000 programs, more than 7,200 sites.

          7                 Callers will be able to receive

          8  information and referrals to assist with housing,

          9  health care, job training, day care, substance abuse

         10  programs and educational opportunities, among

         11  others.

         12                 We are working with Deputy Mayor

         13  Linda Gibbs, City agencies, United Way of New York

         14  City, and non-profits to establish a roadmap for

         15  implementation.

         16                 A critical role of DoITT is to

         17  support emergency preparedness and enhance the

         18  capabilities of the City's public safety agencies.

         19  Accordingly, we have a number of initiatives

         20  underway to strengthen the City's ability to

         21  effectively respond to critical events.

         22                 The first and largest of these is

         23  Emergency Communications Transformation Project or

         24  ECTP, a multi-year multi-agency initiative.

         25                 We are working closely on this
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          2  project with the Police and Fire Departments.

          3                 Once it is complete, ECTP will

          4  improve almost every aspect of the City's 9-1-1

          5  system. From the phone lines that carry the 9-1-1

          6  calls to the facilities where those calls were

          7  handled, to the communication systems that first

          8  responders use to get to the scene of an emergency.

          9                 Last year Commissioner Menchini spoke

         10  to you about our plans for ECTP and some initial

         11  milestones, we have recently updated you on the

         12  project status in capital cost estimates.  Now I

         13  would like to discuss some of our most recent

         14  significant accomplishments to date.

         15                 The Public Safety Answering Center,

         16  or PSAC, will serve as a call-taking environment for

         17  the City's emergency responders.

         18                 Over the past year, DoITT vacated a

         19  floor at its Metrotech facility to make space for

         20  Police, Fire and EMS call-takers and dispatchers. We

         21  have worked with the Department of Citywide

         22  Administrative Services and the Fire and Police

         23  Departments to develop site plans, floor layouts,

         24  dispatch consoles, technology plans for the new

         25  site, and have revisited issues of resiliency,
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          2  redundancy and security.

          3                 Based on our current schedule, the

          4  facility construction work will be complete by

          5  mid-year followed by a six-month period that will be

          6  used for technology outfitting any installation of

          7  call-taking and dispatch consoles.

          8                 The upgrade and replacement of the

          9  City's 9-1-1 telephone network is a major element at

         10  ECTP. This upgrade will provide the City with the

         11  infrastructure required to operate at PSAC and

         12  provide for the replacement of end of life technical

         13  equipment.

         14                 Upon contract award expected this

         15  spring, we will work with the vendor to deploy the

         16  new network components over a three-year period.

         17                 In addition to the work at PSAC, we

         18  have made substantial progress on the construction

         19  and renovation of the Fire Department's

         20  Communications Offices or COs. To date we have

         21  replaced the radio towers at the Staten Island,

         22  Bronx, Queens and Brooklyn COs, as well as the Fire

         23  Department's Long Island City facility.

         24                 To ensure delivery of the many

         25  components of ECTP, a procurement process resulted
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          2  in selection of a vendor for the provision of

          3  systems integration services. The vendor is focused

          4  on tactical, as well as strategic projects,

          5  including AVL roll out of the Fire Department, the

          6  development of integrated radio communications

          7  plans, and the initial design of call-taking and

          8  dispatch consoles.

          9                 Progress has also been made in the

         10  area of computer-aided dispatch development. The

         11  Police Department has advanced its CAD development

         12  project and will launch a new CAD system for the

         13  Transit Bureau by the summer to be followed by

         14  launch for the balance of its operations.

         15                 At the Fire Department we are in the

         16  process of conducting critical upgrades to the EMS

         17  CAD system soon to be in place.

         18                 Additionally, we are moving forward

         19  to further enhance the first responder

         20  interoperability and dispatch capability of the

         21  City.

         22                 Utilizing the frequencies formerly

         23  assigned to television channel 16, DoITT has awarded

         24  the contract to design, develop and implement an

         25  integrated public safety radio network to support
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          2  the Fire Department and EMS dispatch communications,

          3  and the communications needs of multiple City

          4  agencies.

          5                 The network, when completed in 2008,

          6  will migrate public safety wireless communications

          7  onto a common Channel 16 UHF frequency. The Police

          8  Department's radios and FDNY fire ground radios

          9  already operate on Channel 16.

         10                 For interoperability purposes, this

         11  will enable the programming of Fire, EMS, NYPD, and

         12  Office of Emergency Management frequencies onto any

         13  public safety radio. The new network will also

         14  support the communications for the Department's of

         15  Correction, Parks, Sanitation, Transportation, the

         16  Office of Emergency Management and the Sheriff's

         17  Office, and allow for interoperability with the

         18  Counties of Nassau, Suffolk, Westchester, the Port

         19  Authority and the MTA.

         20                 DoITT is also coordinating

         21  initiatives to enhance the way municipal field

         22  workers obtain real time access to agency systems

         23  and the way first responders communicate at the

         24  scene of an incident.

         25                 Last year we testified about our
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          2  plans for a Citywide mobile wireless network to

          3  provide high speed data communications to support

          4  the mobile personnel of public safety agencies.

          5                 Since that time, we have reviewed

          6  responses to an RFP and recently launched a

          7  six-month test of two different wireless

          8  technologies.

          9                 Initially the selected vendors will

         10  demonstrate how their wireless solutions meet the

         11  City's public safety requirements in a one-square

         12  mile area of Lower Manhattan.

         13                 With other agencies, we will evaluate

         14  the solution that best supports the City's public

         15  safety high speed data requirements.

         16                 The vendor that best demonstrates its

         17  ability to meet the City's requirements may then be

         18  selected to build out a network across the five

         19  boroughs.

         20                 I would now like to briefly address

         21  some of the services we offer and systems we are

         22  developing to support the missions of other City

         23  agencies.

         24                 Through the integrated justice

         25  project, we are developing the technical
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          2  infrastructure necessary for the City and State

          3  Criminal Justice Agencies to effectively and

          4  efficiently share criminal justice data.

          5                 The new infrastructure will replace

          6  the decade old mainframe base data share system with

          7  the middlewear/messaging architecture and a public

          8  safety portal.

          9                 This new environment will allow

         10  agencies to provide data to existing and planned

         11  systems in a secure and reliable format.

         12                 In January, with the Department of

         13  Housing, Preservation and Development, the Housing

         14  Development Corporation, and the New York City

         15  Housing Authority, DoITT launched the affordable

         16  housing resource center on NYC.GOV. Created to

         17  increase New Yorkers' access to information from

         18  more than a dozen City and State agencies involved

         19  in housing matters, this portal provides one-stop

         20  access to valuable information on current housing

         21  lotteries, buying and renting apartments, legal

         22  rights and responsibilities, homelessness prevention

         23  and health tips.

         24                 Users are also able to access housing

         25  lotteries via a comprehensive list of rental and
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          2  home-buying opportunities, or by filtering apartment

          3  rental lottery opportunities by family income and

          4  size.

          5                 Also, this summer the City will

          6  launch on NYC.GOV the Integrated Human Services

          7  System, or IHSS. IHSS will allow individuals to go

          8  through a secure, online prescreening process to

          9  determine potential eligibility for a broad range of

         10  programs, including Food Stamps, Public Assistance,

         11  Public Health Insurance, and a variety of child care

         12  and tax credit programs, such as the earned income

         13  tax credit.

         14                 In addition to the prescreening,

         15  users may choose to populate a subset of

         16  applications or search for administering agency

         17  office locations. For members of the public who do

         18  not have access to the internet, community

         19  organizations, libraries and other sites will be

         20  able to access this tool and will help clients

         21  navigate it. And members of the public will also be

         22  able to call 3-1-1 for pre-screening information at

         23  a high level. This on-line pre-screening tool is

         24  also scheduled to include foreign language access,

         25  by providing IHSS in English, Spanish, Chinese,
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          2  Arabic, Korean, Haitian-Creole and Russian. Through

          3  the Integrated Human Services System, the City

          4  intends to build a more comprehensive,

          5  client-centric approach to human services delivery,

          6  to the benefit of both residents and the agencies

          7  that serve them.

          8                 Working with the Campaign Finance

          9  Board, we launched a "Doing Business" database on

         10  NYC.GOV last spring. This implementation included

         11  two searchable databases: an NYC Vendor Search

         12  database providing detailed information about

         13  vendors that do business with the City and their

         14  principals, and an NYC lobbyist search database,

         15  which provides detailed information about lobbyists

         16  registered with the City and their clients.

         17                 Going forward, we are working on the

         18  creation of a Business Express Portal. This

         19  initiative, with the Department of Small Business

         20  Services and several other City agencies, is

         21  intended to provide new and existing businesses with

         22  the on-line tools required to open and expand

         23  businesses in the New York City area.

         24                 Initially, this will include creating

         25  a central location on NYC.GOV for business owners to
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          2  obtain information and permits related to opening

          3  and maintaining businesses within the City. In the

          4  future, the portal is intended to provide businesses

          5  with the ability to manage their transactions with

          6  the City in one location on the web.

          7                 Visitors to NYC.GOV can also watch

          8  NYC TV online, another award-winning way in which

          9  public access to government has been enhanced. NYC

         10  TV is now part of the larger NYC TV Media Group,

         11  formed at the start of 2005. This group over sees

         12  one broadcast television station reaching

         13  approximately 7.3 million households, five New York

         14  City cable television stations reaching

         15  approximately 1.8 million households; one full-power

         16  FM station branded as Radio New York, WNYE 91.5 FM,

         17  and a production company, NYC TV Original

         18  Productions.

         19                 The flagship station, NYC TV, airs

         20  programming that features New York City lifestyle

         21  culture and history.

         22                 New to NYC TV in 2005 was the Video

         23  Voter Guide, a nonpartisan educational resource for

         24  voters featuring candidates for the offices of

         25  Mayor, Public Advocate, Comptroller, Borough
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          2  President and City Council.

          3                 The Video Voter Guide was designed to

          4  provide New Yorkers with profiles of candidates to

          5  help them make more informed decisions.

          6                 All candidates for these offices were

          7  offered an opportunity to tape brief statements that

          8  aired regularly throughout the weeks leading up to

          9  primary general elections.

         10                 Airing on NYC TV channel 74, the

         11  Guide could be viewed by nearly 2 million cable

         12  households in the City's five boroughs, and maps

         13  were used to help viewers locate their neighborhoods

         14  and identify their Council Districts.

         15                 In closing, DoITT's Fiscal 2007

         16  budget will enable us to accomplish the goals I have

         17  described today. The Preliminary Budget provides for

         18  operating expenses of approximately 292.6 million,

         19  an increase of 55.4 million over Fiscal 2006's

         20  forecasted budget. The budget includes 63.6 million

         21  in personal services to support the 994 full-time

         22  positions at DoITT and 220 million for OTPS or Other

         23  Than Personal Services.

         24                 Of the 292 million, 106.4 million

         25  represents intra-City funds to be transferred from
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          2  other agencies to DoITT for the services that we

          3  provide. Telecommunications costs represent the

          4  largest portion of the intra-City expense. Fiscal

          5  2007 intra-City telecommunications expenditures are

          6  budgeted at 93.3 million, while total

          7  telecommunications costs are budgeted at almost 96

          8  million.

          9                 Thank you for your time this

         10  afternoon. That concludes my prepared remarks. We

         11  would now be pleased to answer any questions you

         12  have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 I know that we'll go back and forth

         16  on questions. I just want to start by talking about

         17  the emergency communication transformation project,

         18  we know it as ECTP. And I know you alluded to it in

         19  your testimony. And I did sit in on the Fire

         20  Department hearing, I guess it was yesterday, you

         21  lose track, or the day before, so there was

         22  obviously quite a bit of discussion regarding their

         23  GPS program. So, my question to you is, just so the

         24  public understands, there is a one and there is a

         25  two in terms of this project. And in terms of the
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          2  one, I just wanted to understand, because we did

          3  obviously, and Council Member Katz has been very

          4  vocal on this, to her credit, seems like

          5  year-after-year, regarding the large amount of the

          6  capital dollars, 1.3 billion, allocated to this

          7  project.

          8                 So, I wanted to understand, within I

          9  think the 85 million-ish that has been, 157 that has

         10  been allocated, there is a very small amount that

         11  has been allocated for this fiscal year and last

         12  fiscal year. So, I wanted to understand what has

         13  gone into essentially what I think is PSAC I and

         14  tell us the status of some of those projects.

         15                 My understanding is you have the, you

         16  know, the task of trying to bring the City of New

         17  York to the best possible emergency responder

         18  status, and this is the portion that you're doing on

         19  technology, and it includes a wireless

         20  communication, that hopefully would include

         21  geographic positioning system that would enable

         22  first the Fire Department and then others to be able

         23  to be identified as to where their vehicle is. It

         24  has so many aspects. It has transmitters, it has

         25  what kind of data will go through some of this
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          2  wireless system, it has a CAD system, it has what's

          3  beamed in and out, and obviously you're talking

          4  about looking at a pilot and moving on.

          5                 So, I just want to get a sense of

          6  within that project what's involved for the first

          7  phase.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Hi. My

          9  name is Margery Brown, I'm the Deputy Commissioner

         10  for Finance Administration.

         11                 Just to clarify one thing in terms of

         12  what's been spent in the numbers that, I don't know

         13  if you've seen them or not, but we have spent $85

         14  million in Fiscal Year '05.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Talk in a little.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Is that

         17  better? Okay. So, in 2005 we spent $85 million. The

         18  majority of that was with the construction of PSAC I

         19  which was approximately 60 million. The remainder

         20  being some amounts for quality assurance of the

         21  entire project, and some systems integration work

         22  with our vendor HP, and this is the quality

         23  assurances with Gartner. In addition, there was

         24  approximately 15 million for the purchase of radio

         25  consoles for the Fire Department, and so that's the
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          2  85 and then in 2006 there's been some additional

          3  expenditures to date and some that we still expect

          4  to happen in 2006, assuming that we can move forward

          5  with a number of projects.

          6                 The largest one of that, of those

          7  projects, is the e 9-1-1 upgrade, which is an

          8  approximately $200 million project to upgrade the

          9  entire network for police and fire for e 9-1-1, as

         10  well as the equipment that's used in the PSAC to

         11  answer those phones.

         12                 We are currently negotiating that

         13  contract, and hopefully going to wrap it up soon, in

         14  which case there will be a significant payout this

         15  year, because a large portion of the contract is

         16  equipment so that the contractor will get -- there

         17  will be a milestone payment up front so you will see

         18  that impacting this budget if it gets registered in

         19  this year.

         20                 Some other costs that we'll be

         21  hitting this year are some additional systems

         22  integration and work with HP, as well as Gartner,

         23  and a lot of that is around, looking at CAD and the

         24  different CAD systems that fire, police and EMS

         25  currently have. In addition, some more radio console
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          2  equipment for the Fire Department, as well as work

          3  at the communications offices for the Fire

          4  Department.

          5                 The latest number that we reflected I

          6  think, in terms of what was in this budget, was

          7  about 300 million in Fiscal Year '06. That is

          8  probably high at this point, and we'll be

          9  readjusting those numbers with OMB for the Executive

         10  Plan.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I think what the

         12  issue is, is that understandably things change, but

         13  there was a much larger amount originally planned

         14  for the budgets. I mean, like big times more.

         15                 So, my question is, why do you think

         16  it's taking such a long time to bring this system

         17  on-line?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I think

         19  there has been a substantial amount of time in the

         20  planning process, but that is now at the point where

         21  I think you are going to see substantial investments

         22  being made, as Margery just mentioned. We're

         23  wrapping up the discussions with regard to the

         24  telephony system and the consoles. That's a

         25  substantial budget item that will dramatically
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          2  improve the way that calls get to the 9-1-1 system

          3  and replace outmoded equipment. So, that took a

          4  little bit longer than we expected, but we expect

          5  that the conclusion is near and that we will

          6  bringing that contract to bear fairly soon.

          7                 That's an example of something that

          8  we're moving ahead with.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Actually,

         10  if I could just add one thing to that as well. One

         11  thing that I did leave off, I'm sorry, that is going

         12  to be an expenditure in this year is the AVL and the

         13  work that you were talking about with the Fire

         14  Department, and that's approximately $30 million.

         15  I'm sorry, that's a large number. This year, Fiscal

         16  Year '06. That project is very much underway and

         17  expenditures have been committed.

         18                 The large numbers that originally

         19  we're contemplating hitting in Fiscal Year '06 were

         20  really the telephony system, as well as the CAD for

         21  the Fire Department, and that has been delayed. But

         22  hopefully the telephony contract will be registered

         23  this year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: To a certain extent

         25  I don't want to, I don't know if the word is blame
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          2  you, but bring up a lot of issues that I had had and

          3  I think that the Council had had, as far as the

          4  Finance Department goes, with the previous

          5  Commissioner, although he was very excited about a

          6  lot of these projects, the flow of information, and

          7  I guess I should probably just talk for myself as

          8  Chair of this Committee, the flow of information was

          9  not there. Just not there. And that's a problem for

         10  me. And it's a problem for the body, since we're the

         11  ones that allocate the money.

         12                 We made, for instance, five months

         13  ago routine requests for information about the

         14  project, and we got the answer last week, and quite

         15  honestly there were a bunch of issues that weren't

         16  addressed in the answer, contracts, expense costs,

         17  labor issues, things like that. And since there is

         18  no legal requirement for you to issue regular

         19  updates to us on Finance, the requests for

         20  information become much more important, and much

         21  more relevant.

         22                 So, I don't know how we resolve this

         23  issue. I am of the belief, just in general, that

         24  everything comes from the top down. You have great

         25  staff there. I mean, there is no doubt about that.

                                                            112

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  They need to know from the Commissioner that that's

          3  unacceptable, that we are partners. And, so, I guess

          4  as we move forward I would like some of your

          5  thoughts on that, and also understand that when we

          6  ask for details it's because if we're giving you 1.3

          7  billion to start a project that hasn't been spent

          8  yet, there is other projects that many of the other

          9  agencies, which are your colleagues, are coming to

         10  us and asking for the money for.

         11                 So, it's not that we're doing it

         12  simply to be difficult. We're doing it because there

         13  is a finite amount of money out there, and we need

         14  to make sure that it's being allocated correctly.

         15                 Are you an Acting Commissioner, by

         16  the way?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I am

         18  Acting Commissioner. I think that we asked

         19  Commissioner Menchini to stay for this, but he

         20  declined.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I can't imagine

         22  why.

         23                 So, when do you get confirmed, or do

         24  you? When is the confirmation of the Commissioner

         25  officially?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: There

          3  is a search that's currently going on for the

          4  Commissioner of the Agency. And that's ongoing now.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And when is it

          6  expected that one will be chosen, do you know?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I don't

          8  know what the time frame is.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Do you want that to

         10  be tomorrow? Just kidding. Go ahead.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: There

         12  is an active search that's happening right now.

         13                 And what I can tell you is that, you

         14  know, we, and I fully respect the oversight role

         15  that your two committees have, and that going

         16  forward we will do what we need to do to ensure that

         17  there is solid communication and that your questions

         18  are answered. I'm committed to that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. I tend to

         20  want to be a little easier on you because you're

         21  only here for a month or two, or whatever it is that

         22  you're here for.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Two

         24  weeks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: A few weeks.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: So far.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And you don't know

          4  all this yet? So, all right, but if you tend to

          5  stay, which we're not sure yet, I think you should

          6  understand that one of the reasons that Commissioner

          7  Menchini might not have wanted to stay, because last

          8  year was a little difficult, and I continue to

          9  request that that information have a free flow, we

         10  do control the budget, and it can be taken out, and

         11  we've had a lot of faith in DoITT, as we move

         12  forward in not taking the money out. So, I just want

         13  that sort of --

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BERGMANN: I

         15  understand.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have questions on

         17  3-1-1, but I think Council Member Brewer has

         18  questions, and I know some of the colleagues have

         19  questions.

         20                 Go ahead. What I would like to do is

         21  have you ask, and then open it up, if that's okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

         23                 My other question is, I think the

         24  pole top is another project. That is a project in

         25  which there would be, as time goes on, the ability
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          2  for, I think it's cell phone use to be intended

          3  so-to-speak in different locations around the City.

          4                 I think it was budgeted around

          5  something like 25 million. So, my question is,

          6  what's the status of it, what's the budget for it,

          7  and do we expect revenue from these sites? Is it

          8  just for cell phones, as I indicated? And could you

          9  just give us an update, budget-wise and

         10  program-wise.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: Sure, I

         12  can do that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Why don't you

         14  introduce yourself, Mr. Cangemi.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: Sure. My

         16  name is Agostino Cangemi. I'm Deputy Commissioner

         17  for Franchise Administration, as well as General

         18  Counsel, and I have specific oversight --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: For the new

         20  folks, he's loved. Go ahead. We love Auggie. Go

         21  ahead.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: Thank

         23  you.

         24                 The $25 million number was a number

         25  that was in the press. The number, the largest
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          2  number that we had ever articulated in terms of

          3  describing the maximum possible revenue from the

          4  franchise was $21 million, and that number --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Twelve?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI:

          7  Twenty-one million.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Twenty-one

          9  million, okay.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: That

         11  number, though, was premised on each of the six

         12  franchisees actually selecting the maximum amount of

         13  locations they were entitled to select under the

         14  franchise. Over the course of the franchise, each

         15  franchisee can go up to 3,000 locations, the

         16  franchises last 15 years, up to 15 years, they have

         17  the option to extend, and with built in within the

         18  franchise was kind of a phased-in approach.  We

         19  didn't want to install 18,000 antennas all over the

         20  City all at once. What we've done is kind of a draft

         21  pick type of approach to the locations that are most

         22  desirable. But we started that draft about eight

         23  months ago. Each company is in a priority order.

         24  They have a month to select locations. They can

         25  select no more than 300 at a time, and no more than
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          2  150 in a particular region of the City.

          3                 So, by its nature, the contracts were

          4  limited and the revenue was therefore limited

          5  because we didn't want to kind of have 18,000

          6  antennas springing up all over the City all at once.

          7                 So, that first round, during that

          8  first round the six companies could have selected up

          9  to 1,800 sites. What they did was select

         10  approximately 890 sites, so we didn't get up to the

         11  maximum.

         12                 All that means is they may be meeting

         13  their needs in some other way, other than the pole

         14  franchises, rooftops or other ways.

         15                 We are in the process of evaluating

         16  those 890. Some of those locations are not

         17  necessarily feasible as time goes by for the

         18  companies. We have inspected and reviewed and issued

         19  what we perceive to be notices to proceed to about

         20  400 of the locations.

         21                 So, the way the revenue works, it was

         22  based on her location, as well as an annual fee.

         23  That $21 million number was never considered what we

         24  would be expecting to see in the early years at all.

         25  And, in fact, was the maximum number that we would

                                                            118

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  see in the latest years, in each of the six

          3  companies, selected all 3,000 locations.

          4                 I think that's unlikely, given that

          5  there's been contraction in the cellular world, and

          6  since we announced the pole top franchises, Sprint

          7  and Nextel have merged, AT&T and Cingular have

          8  merged, because of those mergers, they're going to

          9  need less duplication of location. So, that's a good

         10  thing for the City, in terms of you perhaps don't

         11  need as many sites, but it means that less of the

         12  poll sites are going to be necessary.

         13                 So, the other thing I wanted to

         14  address was we asked whether or not the contracts

         15  were limited to wireless, and they're not. I mean to

         16  cell phones.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Cell phones.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: To cell

         19  phones, they're not.

         20                 They're actually limited to wireless,

         21  but they're not limited to cell phones. So, if the

         22  company wanted to deploy some kind of wireless

         23  Internet program, they can use --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Do you know if

         25  they are doing that? It's not part of your contract
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          2  to know?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: The

          4  current franchisees are not doing that.

          5                 On the other hand, when you look at

          6  what a cell phone is today, and how it's changed,

          7  there's a lot more, a lot less voice and a lot more

          8  data that's being transmitted. You know, you look at

          9  a Verizon DCAS (phonetic) of product where you're

         10  getting videos downloaded, video clips, music clips,

         11  that's going to happen and that kind of data and

         12  that kind of information is going to be happening

         13  with the assistance of the pole tops.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Now, of the 800

         15  some sites or of the six franchisees, obviously

         16  using less pole tops for the reasons that you

         17  outlined, are some of them using, I know you charged

         18  this $10, there was a much smaller number for those

         19  who were going into underserved areas, do you know

         20  if that's still happening? Are you using their

         21  ability to go into other --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: We have

         23  poles that have been selected in each of the areas.

         24  There are three zones, and the zone C was the one

         25  that had rents as low as $10. We do have poles that

                                                            120

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  are selected throughout the entire five boroughs in

          3  each of those three areas, but I don't believe that

          4  we had companies using that kind of $10 price to

          5  offer some kind of service other than wireless.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, the reason

          7  I bring all of this is not to belabor. Obviously we

          8  want to look at the revenue numbers, this is a

          9  budget hearing. But I think obviously it also begs

         10  the question that I know we are not SanFrancisco, we

         11  are not Atlanta, we are not Philadelphia, but it is

         12  a question of is this the right approach, or could

         13  we be doing something more as the City to think

         14  about this build-out of a network, again, not using

         15  public dollars, but using public facilities, and is

         16  this the right way we should be going? So, I hope

         17  that we will perhaps have a hearing on this and

         18  revisit this and look at it to see is this the right

         19  way to go, given changing technology, and given what

         20  we know.

         21                 So, another question, quickly, is

         22  radios are one way to communicate. We want all of

         23  our first responders, the list was given by a

         24  Commissioner when he spoke. Motorola is often the

         25  company mentioned, and sometimes I think in
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          2  Washington, D.C. Motorola said, okay, we have our

          3  Spectrum, we have our radios, you have to use our

          4  Spectrum, and then when another company came in and

          5  wanted to work, in terms of first responder issues,

          6  Motorola, it wasn't able to communicate.

          7                 So, I'm just wondering, how do you

          8  think about this issue? If you're working with a

          9  particular company on first responder, a vendor like

         10  a Motorola, and they have a certain communication

         11  ability, is it also possible if another company gets

         12  a contract with a different agency to have those two

         13  companies communicating, or will there be a spectrum

         14  or other kind of communication issue?

         15                 It happened in another City and I

         16  just want to know, maybe you thought about it.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: There

         18  are other vendors out there besides Motorola, but I

         19  think what is really important is to determine what

         20  are the City's needs, what are the City's

         21  requirements typically around things like

         22  interoperability. We have some interoperability

         23  channels already in place at the strategic level,

         24  and at a tactical level to allow for agencies to

         25  communicate.
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          2                 In addition, the Channel 6 team plan

          3  will I think really bring together and migrate us as

          4  a City into an operable approach, and so it's more I

          5  think we should not be focusing as much on what the

          6  vendor brings, as much as what the City requirements

          7  are and be driven by the needs particularly of our

          8  public safety agencies.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, I hear you.

         10  Just a final. The DoITT contract to work on the pole

         11  tops, is there a revenue projection for this year?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI:

         13  $800,000.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So what I

         15  mentioned earlier.

         16                 Okay, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just want to ask

         18  a question because it affects all my colleagues. I

         19  don't know if your staff, and as much as I have

         20  complimented your staff, I think this might be more

         21  them than you.

         22                 The 3-1-1 system, as they've both

         23  known, and most of you know, has been one of my

         24  issues for many years now, since we allocated all

         25  that money for it.
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          2                 One of the problems I find with 3-1-1

          3  is, quite honestly, my constituents call it, they

          4  get the track number, then they call me. And I have

          5  to get the track number from them, or I have to

          6  re-put in the complaint, reinstitute the complaint.

          7                 I think 3-1-1 would work, it's just

          8  that for the Council members there has to be an

          9  easier system. We had had an agreement from

         10  Commissioner Menchini to do a pilot project in my

         11  district, I think, and I think in Council Member

         12  Brewer's district, I'm not sure, to do what I had

         13  suggested last year at this hearing, which was that

         14  when I as a Councilwoman call up 3-1-1, I should be

         15  able to say to 3-1-1 this is Councilwoman Katz's

         16  office, I'd like a status on all of the complaints I

         17  have made, and it can't be done. And what's

         18  happening is we have to do it piecemeal. And with

         19  all of the technology that we have, if we're going

         20  to have a 3-1-1 system, then there should be a way

         21  for us to be able to call up as Council members who

         22  get dozens of complaints a week, and say I'd like a

         23  status on all of these issues, I'd like a status on

         24  all the housing issues, there's people that are

         25  called for $400 rebates, what's the status on that?
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          2  That's the first issue.

          3                 The second issue is, when we ask for

          4  the status, a lot of times it says it's completed.

          5  The reason it's completed, or closed I guess is the

          6  real word, is because it's been given to the agency.

          7  That doesn't mean the pothole was filled. It doesn't

          8  mean the street light was fixed. It doesn't mean the

          9  $400 rebate was sent out. So, although I think it's

         10  a good system, we would appreciate a little more

         11  ability for the Council to have it be useful to us,

         12  and thereby our constituents, our mutual

         13  constituents.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: The

         15  first question with regard to your ability to

         16  determine the status of complaints at your office or

         17  any Council Member's Office files with 3-1-1. It's

         18  possible that our analytics project would provide

         19  for that capability, but I would need to validate

         20  that and get back to you and I will.

         21                 The second question had to do with

         22  closed complaints, and that is something that I

         23  think is being determined by a variety of factors,

         24  and in part it's the deployment of our customer

         25  relationship management system so that we can have a
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          2  sense from the agency about when the pothole was

          3  filled, and that system is being deployed and I will

          4  look also into the status of that for different

          5  subservices so that we can have a level of certainty

          6  that the date reflected in there for the pothole

          7  being filled or wherever it is is in fact real and

          8  not simply a hand-off between 3-1-1 and another

          9  agency, for example, which is I think what you're

         10  trying to avoid.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well, yes. And by

         12  the way, the first part is moot, if the second part

         13  doesn't get solved. I don't have to call up to find

         14  out the case is closed because it was given to an

         15  agency. I know that already. So I knew that the

         16  minute it was transferred to me when I called.

         17                 But I just want for the record, and I

         18  understand this is your first hearing, it's only two

         19  weeks, this is the third year that I'm bringing this

         20  up. I just want you to understand that.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I will

         22  get back to you with the status.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. Thank you

         24  very much, I appreciate it.

         25                 Council Member Jackson. And then if

                                                            126

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  the Sergeant-At-Arms could tell Council Member

          3  Felder, who is probably in the lounge or next door;

          4  is there a Sergeant-At-Arms here? All right, that

          5  there is an opening up for questions. That would be

          6  great.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Hello. Thank

          8  you. Good afternoon. And welcome aboard.

          9                 I just have one or two questions, and

         10  you may or may not be able to answer them, but it's

         11  clearly appropriate at this time, and maybe you can

         12  get back to us on this particular matter.

         13                 One is that, I don't know if you're

         14  aware, that Mayor Bloomberg signed into law on

         15  December 29th a Minority and Woman-Owned Business

         16  Law, which expands opportunities and has goals for

         17  Minority and Woman-Owned Businesses. Do you know

         18  what percentage of your budget you contract out for

         19  either goods or services? And where are you in

         20  moving towards compliance to implement the Minority

         21  and Woman-Owned Business Law?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I'm

         23  aware of the law, and we will be working with the

         24  agencies responsible for implementing it.

         25                 We will have to get back to you on
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          2  specifics of that question, but we will do so.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. As you

          4  know, and if not, your staff should know, they've

          5  been around for a little while, you know, the

          6  Mayor's Office of Contracts and the Small Business

          7  Services are moving forward and meeting with

          8  agencies to make sure that everyone is coming on

          9  board and ready to move towards implementation, and

         10  as part of the requirement, a high level official in

         11  each agency or department is supposed to be assigned

         12  to ensure compliance with the law.

         13                 Have you, or did the prior

         14  Commissioner designate someone in your agency? And

         15  if so, who is that individual?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: It's

         17  Margery Brown, who is sitting right here.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Let me

         19  address that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Sure.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: I am the

         22  person and I was there when Menchini was there, and

         23  he assigned me. So, we have been actively working to

         24  implement that in our agency. In the past we have

         25  not tracked it to the extent that we should, so
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          2  we're putting systems in place to be able to track,

          3  and also, obviously even more important to be

          4  reaching out to more minority and woman-owned

          5  companies as we put out a lot of solicitations that

          6  affect, you know, the very constituents that you're

          7  talking about.

          8                 So, it's something that we're very

          9  involved in and very interested in pursuing further.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What is the

         11  overall, what is your contract budget? How much do

         12  you spend on contracting? How many contracts do you

         13  have?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: I will

         15  have to get back to you on the details, but I can

         16  tell you that probably, if I had to just estimate

         17  off the top of my head, the reason why I have to get

         18  back to you is it's not just the expense budget, a

         19  lot of what we do in the agency is the capital

         20  budget because we're implementing the programs and

         21  it's really on the capital side that you're going to

         22  see the majority of our services contracts and those

         23  get sort of bundled in with equipment, so sometimes

         24  it's hard to break those out so I'll have to get

         25  back to you with the details.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. I'm

          3  interested in that, because as a former Chair of the

          4  Contracts Committee I'm interested in how many

          5  contracts are they contracting out and how many

          6  contracts there are as far as this fiscal year and

          7  proposed for the next fiscal year so we can get, you

          8  know, a sense of what's going on.

          9                 But I do know that, for example, and

         10  correct me if I'm wrong, that you do have a service

         11  contract for 3-1-1 operators; is that correct?

         12  Because I understand you have City employees that

         13  are 3-1-1 operators, and then you have a contract,

         14  and I'm just curious as to how many City employees

         15  do you have on the payroll of the City of New York,

         16  and how many contracts do you have for contract

         17  services, you know, those 3-1-1 operators? Do you

         18  have any broad numbers or specific numbers?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Well, I

         20  can certainly address the issue of how many 3-1-1

         21  call takers we have.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That are City

         23  employees versus contract.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: That are

         25  City employees.
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          2                 Currently we have, let me just get

          3  that, currently we have about 310 City call takers.

          4  The number that we have with the vendor, I'll have

          5  to get back to you only because, again, a lot of

          6  them, we only have full-time employees, they also

          7  employ part-time employees, so I'd want to get you

          8  what the sort of full-time equivalent number was,

          9  but I can get that for you.

         10                 I can tell you that it is a smaller

         11  number. We answer more of the calls ourselves than

         12  the vendor does.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is that the

         14  one with the vendor to provide 3-1-1 operator

         15  services, would that be your largest service

         16  contract in your agency, all things considered? Or

         17  do you have a contract that's larger, as far as

         18  scope and value for services?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: That would

         20  be our largest services --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: How much

         22  approximately is that contract worth?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN:

         24  Approximately 10 million a year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: A year. And
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          2  is that a yearly contract, or is there an expiration

          3  date, or a multi-year contract or what?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: It is

          5  actually, it's a multi-year contract that is

          6  currently expiring in a year. We're going to be

          7  doing a one-year extension, and we actually are

          8  going to be resoliciting more broadly to see if

          9  there's another vendors out there that could provide

         10  the services as well. So that's a solicitation that

         11  should be released hopefully within the next month.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. All

         13  right, because I would like to, I'm going to ask

         14  Council Member Yvette Clarke, who is the Chair of

         15  the Contracts Committee, to follow-up on this

         16  particular matter. Because one of the things as a

         17  former Chair of the Contracts Committee that I

         18  focused on in the budget, either Preliminary and

         19  Executive Budget hearings, was to move towards

         20  ensuring that we have City employees that carry our

         21  business, and especially when you can do that at the

         22  same or even cheaper than contracting out.

         23                 When you're contracting out, you're

         24  contracting out for-profit, meaning the contractor

         25  is in business for a profit, and considering the
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          2  fact that I represent New York City residents, I

          3  want to ensure that New York City residents,

          4  especially in my district, are employed, and

          5  especially with, you know, community service

          6  society's report two years ago with 50 percent black

          7  male unemployment in New York City and Hispanics'

          8  unemployment, all of that is an issue to us. I look

          9  at it from a comprehensive point of view, and as you

         10  know, when you're employed, you want to have not

         11  only a salary but you want to have benefits also to

         12  support your family health insurance and all the

         13  work. And, so, I do know that several agencies that

         14  have computerized, computer contracts, basically got

         15  rid of those contracts and brought those employees

         16  in-house or similar employees, and have saved

         17  hundreds and hundreds and thousands of dollars as a

         18  result of that.

         19                 So, I ask you as a new Commissioner,

         20  so when you and your Executive team is looking at

         21  all of that, look at hiring in-house and the cost

         22  factor in doing that comparative to contracting out,

         23  okay?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I

         25  appreciate that. And we will look into that. The
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          2  King Center is an overflow center that takes on

          3  calls when volumes peak, and Margery can provide you

          4  with some data now, actually, about how we have

          5  moved to reduce our use of consultants and hire

          6  employees. So, we can provide that for you know, if

          7  you would like.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I would like

          9  that. Thank you very much.

         10                 Okay, go ahead.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yes, we're

         12  actually one of those agencies that took a close

         13  look at our budget and our staffing and looked at

         14  where we were using consultants that we could

         15  actually bring that in-house and hire City

         16  employees.

         17                 So, we actually in the last two years

         18  have successfully brought in almost 150 people that

         19  otherwise would have been consultants, and the

         20  savings is significant. If you look at sort of

         21  analysis of what those 150 people would have cost as

         22  outside consultants as opposed to what they cost the

         23  City, we're talking over $30 million.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That you

         25  saved or what?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: By

          3  bringing -- exactly. Because we're sometimes talking

          4  about a four to one ratio between the cost of a

          5  consultant versus a City employee.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I'd

          7  just say that that's what should be taking place, in

          8  order so that from an agency or a department point

          9  of view, you're saving money and you're basically

         10  refunneling that inside, and also, I'm not saying

         11  that some of the employees of the consultants may

         12  not be City residents, but these are City employees

         13  and normally the benefits are not the same. So,

         14  quite frankly, as a Commissioner or Deputy

         15  Commissioner, you know, you know you have a contract

         16  for X, but those employees work for you, you train

         17  them, and they are there in order to do the work for

         18  the City of New York, and that's where it really

         19  should be. And as a result of what you just said,

         20  you saved $30 million. And I know on one contract

         21  last year, one small agency, they moved it from

         22  contract out from in-house, they saved $1 million,

         23  and this was only on a couple of employees. So, I

         24  know that we can do that, and I applaud you for

         25  taking that action.
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          2                 What I would like to do down the

          3  road, I'll call your office, I would love to take a

          4  walk through a call center so that when I'm calling,

          5  you know, I can understand it, and visualize it in

          6  my mind, the processes that everyone will go

          7  through, I would like to do that.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I would

          9  be very pleased to arrange for that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

         11  very much. Thank you, Madam Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It actually is an

         13  amazing site, to see the call center.

         14                 Just to acknowledge Councilman

         15  Koppell. He has some questions later, but Council

         16  Member Dickens was next in line.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair, and Commissioner Bergman, for your time

         19  and testimony.

         20                 By the way, I availed myself of the

         21  voluntary free Video Voter Guide, thank you. I think

         22  it's an amazing thing. Thank you so much.

         23                 But I want to go back to your

         24  testimony for a minute. You indicated here that on

         25  March 30th there was a meeting with the community

                                                            136

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  boards; is that correct?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes, we

          4  are just now arranging that meeting. We would be

          5  pleased for you to attend, if you'd like.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: How is that

          7  being done? Is that borough-by-borough? And within

          8  the boroughs does that include all the community

          9  boards by borough?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I can answer

         11  that. What happened is that last year we passed a

         12  bill, a few years ago, that says that the community

         13  boards and us should get the data from 3-1-1. So,

         14  you would know how many potholes were filled in your

         15  area or not filled, okay.

         16                 The data has been slow in arriving.

         17  So, when I saw the Commissioner recently, I said as

         18  part of that bill you should know there's an

         19  advisory board of community boards, and it hadn't

         20  met because the Commissioner was waiting to produce

         21  the data. I said let's have a meeting of the

         22  District Managers, because they're very anxious, and

         23  they can say, okay, we don't need this data, we need

         24  that data, and we'll be able to get this bill

         25  implemented. So, that's why we're having the
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          2  meeting. It was my idea to get the meeting going,

          3  all the Council members are welcome, all the

          4  community board, particularly District Managers, are

          5  welcome. All of them.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

          7  Council member.

          8                 Now, when you said there's an

          9  advisory board, does that mean that there's a few

         10  from each borough? Is that how that works?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: To be determined.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right.

         13  And will the Board get the reports prior to the

         14  meeting or after?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: The reports will

         16  be prior to any meeting. The first issue was just to

         17  get a report, and the issue is this volume is huge

         18  of the data that's available, we're going to try to

         19  sit down with the agency and with the community

         20  boards and us to see if we can cut down on the data

         21  and get the process moving. Accomplish the goal.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you. At

         23  a hearing held two weeks ago held by my colleague,

         24  Council Member John Liu, around the imperative issue

         25  of electrocution and electrical shocking of people
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          2  and/or their pets, DOT working with Con Edison

          3  indicated a pilot program that they intend to start

          4  around straight voltage, particularly as it relates

          5  to street lights.

          6                 Are you aware that at that hearing it

          7  was said that 3-1-1 would be used to report when

          8  their straight voltage -- they are proposing to put

          9  up a little amber light, the light fixtures and a

         10  consumer would look up a resident here, or someone

         11  walking the street would look up and see that a

         12  little amber light goes on which indicates that

         13  straight voltage is possibly being emitted at that

         14  point, and that 3-1-1 would be used to call, and I

         15  raised the issue then about the additional training

         16  around straight voltage that 3-1-1 operators would

         17  have to have.

         18                 Are you familiar with what I'm

         19  talking about?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: In

         21  broad strokes I am familiar, and I can tell you that

         22  3-1-1 regularly takes on tasks for important areas

         23  like this one, and we will be sure that our

         24  call-takers are well trained and that we have a

         25  robust way to ensure that the Department of
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          2  Transportation gets the information they need so

          3  this can be acted upon quickly.

          4                 And how would this cost of the

          5  training and the additional documentation, recording

          6  and reporting impact on the proposed budget here?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I think

          8  it's absorbed within the budget, quite frankly. This

          9  is something that we do on a regular basis with City

         10  agencies, as new programs and new initiatives are

         11  brought to bear, and we have ongoing training for

         12  our customer service representatives to ensure that

         13  they have the information they need to do their job,

         14  which they do terrifically, and that they're well

         15  informed about the newest initiative for the City.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         17  Commissioner.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Is Commissioner

         19  Burden here? She's on her way, okay. I just have one

         20  last issue.

         21                 Oliver.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just to

         23  inquire, maybe Gale should answer, because my

         24  community board has been very exercised about this

         25  issue, and I'm glad you addressed it, when and where
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          2  is the meeting? Are you going to send out a notice

          3  around it? Because I want to inform my community

          4  board immediately. They call me every week.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Mine does it six

          6  times a week, so we're all in the same boat.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: March 30th we

          9  will definitely send out a notice. I don't know the

         10  time, but we'll make sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Here?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: It's going to

         13  probably be at your agency.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: It will

         15  probably be at the 3-1-1 service centers so that we

         16  can also provide a tour for those community boards

         17  that haven't had a chance to do that. It's 59 Maiden

         18  Lane, not too far from here.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: And all

         21  the boards will be invited.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you.

         24                 I don't know the time. We'll make

         25  sure that everybody gets a notice this week.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BERGMANN: And we

          3  can speak, for those boards that aren't able to

          4  attend the meeting, we're able to have additional

          5  conversations with them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Are there other

          7  questions?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just very quickly,

          9  we're waiting for Commissioner Burden, the street

         10  furniture contract, I understand it's a blast from

         11  the past from many of my colleagues, that is about a

         12  year and a half, two years ago, and I understand the

         13  City is still negotiating the street furniture

         14  contract. I was asked about the payphones a few

         15  times over the last year or so, and what effect

         16  that's going to have on the existing payphone

         17  contracts and where they're placed.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: Actually

         19  the payphones are excluded from the street furniture

         20  contract.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I know that. That's

         22  why I was wondering what the status would be. If it

         23  was included, I'd probably know that.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: I --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Auggie, if I can't
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          2  make fun of you, then what's the point?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: I don't

          4  really see an impact. I see what's happening in the

          5  market for payphone advertising is there's been an

          6  improvement. Advertising revenues are increasing. I

          7  think they're improving the actual quality of the

          8  payphone structures that are out there. Many of the

          9  old structures have been converted to newer

         10  structures, they've been electrified as well, so the

         11  lighting actually allows for greater revenue from

         12  advertising. And then the overall advertising slump

         13  that existed four, three years ago, has improved.

         14                 So, we're still subject to the same

         15  franchises where the City shares in 26 percent of

         16  the net revenue from the advertising, net of the

         17  immediate rep commissions, but that revenue is

         18  increasing, and it has been through the last year

         19  and a half or so.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, considering

         21  grandfathering some of them, considering all of

         22  that, you don't find any payphones will be displaced

         23  by the street furniture contracts?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANGEMI: Not at

         25  all. Not at all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I have a question

          3  about when you are -- we're talking about some of

          4  the PSAC efforts, obviously one of the issues is

          5  that we will have Fire Department, other first

          6  responders with GPS, but what about the emergency

          7  responder vehicles and personnel providing them,

          8  what's the time frame, if there is one on data? That

          9  would be building plans, maps, hazardous materials

         10  on sites, such as hardware stores and so on, and how

         11  was that proceeding?

         12                 Is that something that's part of this

         13  overall project?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: You're

         15  referring to our Mobile wireless data project.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Correct.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: And we

         18  are now going through an evaluation cycle. There are

         19  two vendors that are demonstrating their different

         20  technologies in a one square mile area of Lower

         21  Manhattan, which we think is representative of a

         22  variety of locations within the City of New York,

         23  and there is going to be an evaluation. That

         24  evaluation will be concluded some time in the

         25  summer.
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          2                 After that, depending on the nature

          3  and quality of the work and the evaluation there

          4  will then be a vendor that is selected to go forward

          5  to implementation in the five boroughs, and each

          6  vendor has a different time line for that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So that would

          8  include some of what I would call sort of an

          9  enhanced EIS system.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes,

         11  that would allow for the download of data,

         12  databases, GIS information, streaming video, those

         13  sorts of things, so that it could get to a responder

         14  in real time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, do you want

         16  to add something?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yes, one

         18  of the things that you had asked is is that part of

         19  the ECTP project, and it certainly interfaces it,

         20  and the two projects are working hand-in-hand, and

         21  there's a lot of the people working, but in terms of

         22  the budget it's a separate item.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. Second,

         24  field staff. This is a very large topic, not to be

         25  totally discussed today, but the ACS hearing and
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          2  other hearings have indicated that some field staff

          3  in some agencies, I'm talking non-responder now,

          4  have hand-helds or other ways of downloading data,

          5  not everybody does.

          6                 So, my question is what's the

          7  strategy for DoITT to interface with agencies (a) to

          8  have the field staff, to have appropriate

          9  technology, and (2) to have people communicate.

         10  Obviously you would need a wireless Citywide to do

         11  that. But what's the status?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure.

         13  As you know, there are a number of agencies that

         14  have hand-held devices for their mobile staff who

         15  are in the field, the Health Department is an

         16  example, the Police Department and Sanitation

         17  Department is just about to roll out a pilot, as you

         18  may know, for their enforcement agents.

         19                 We do have a hand-held contract

         20  that's available for agencies so that they can

         21  implement as one vehicle opportunities for providing

         22  wireless devices to their mobile workforce.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Right.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We have

         25  been working very closely to support ACS with regard
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          2  to their needs. There's, for example, the

          3  utilization of cellphones that are being provided to

          4  their caseworkers.

          5                 So, we are available, and part of our

          6  goal, as I mentioned in the beginning of my remarks,

          7  is that we really are here to support the mission of

          8  City agencies, so we work very closely with them to

          9  ensure that their needs are met, be systems that

         10  they need, making sure that there's connectivity

         11  between remote sites and leveraging the DoITT and

         12  the City technology infrastructure, and so we will

         13  meet agencies where their needs are, and we have

         14  some vehicles in place for procurements, should they

         15  need to avail themselves of it. So, we're working

         16  very hard --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And how does that

         18  work budgetwise? Does it go in your budget or their

         19  budget?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN:

         21  Normally, and Margery can correct me, normally it

         22  goes into their budget and they would utilize our

         23  procurement vehicles. And part of what we've done

         24  with these is to ensure that they're enterprise

         25  vehicles to make sure that agencies have a quick and
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          2  reliable way to get their needs met.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, I hear you.

          4                 I just would appreciate, as time goes

          5  on, a plan for some of this roll-out. Because what

          6  happens is every agency comes, testifies, I'm the

          7  one asking the question usually about it. And it

          8  doesn't have a sense of planning.

          9                 Obviously the ACS was the most

         10  traumatic example. And human service agencies are

         11  obviously as needy, and sometimes as first

         12  responders in their own right. So, I think if we

         13  could talk about that, in terms of a plan for the

         14  City, and making it somewhat public, that would be

         15  very helpful. People don't understand as the

         16  technology changes, I think it becomes easier in

         17  some ways and more complicated in others.

         18                 Finally, NYC TV is something that I

         19  watched. Council Member Felder has left? Oh, he's

         20  back. Council Member Felder does not like WNY TV, or

         21  NYC TV. I do like it. But my question is, do you

         22  have -- I just wanted an update. You have several

         23  channels. You obviously have, in addition, sort of a

         24  bulletin board on channel 93, and my question is,

         25  budget-wise, is it changing and then in terms of
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          2  content, it's always been a concern that the way in

          3  which, you know, Council Members, committees are

          4  presented, because there's always one camera, it's

          5  not the most technology savvy City Hall

          6  structure-wise. Some cities now have two cameras,

          7  you know, the idea is the public is, in my opinion,

          8  supposed to be informed.

          9                 Council Member Felder has another

         10  view. But the fact of the matter is, are there ideas

         11  that you are discussing that either cost more money

         12  or could change some of the framework, and what do

         13  you suggest about '93, which I think is digital and

         14  not analog?

         15                 So, those are my questions.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay. I'll

         17  answer first, though, the budget questions. The

         18  overall budget of NYC TV has increased, but the

         19  increase has come entirely from a transfer of funds

         20  from the Department of Education to DoITT, as part

         21  of the functional transfer of Channel 25 to DoITT.

         22                 In addition, there has been some

         23  revenue increases, as we have been able to collect

         24  from lease timers that the Department of Ed had not

         25  collected from in the past, which has given them an
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          2  ability to spend some more money as well. And they

          3  are looking at different ways of increasing

          4  revenues.

          5                 And in terms of the move to digital

          6  television, there are going to be some costs

          7  associated with that. Obviously we have to put in a

          8  digital transmitter up at the Empire State Building,

          9  and there are some other equipment costs associated

         10  with that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Is Commissioner

         12  Burden here?

         13                 Okay, all right, I thank you very

         14  much for your testimony here. I wish you all the

         15  luck as you move forward. And we will follow-up with

         16  the issues that were brought up today. Thank you,

         17  Commissioner Bergmann.

         18                 I've just got a little housekeeping.

         19  Can I ask Michael McMahon, Council Member McMahon,

         20  for his vote?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chairwoman. I vote aye on all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         24  much. Thank you to Chair Brewer, for co-chairing the

         25  hearing with us.
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          2                 If I could ask Commissioner Burden to

          3  join us at the table. The transition, if we have

          4  questions, if we have questions or issues for

          5  Commissioner Bergmann, take it outside.

          6                 We want to thank Commissioner Burden

          7  once again for coming in, and Richard Barth, both of

          8  whom are extremely responsive to this Council.

          9                 What has been discussed many times

         10  here at the Council is the number of rezonings that

         11  have gone through the City Planning Commission and

         12  sent to us swiftly, I believe is remarkable,

         13  considering the history and what has been done in

         14  the past. To a very large extent that has to do with

         15  the Commissioner, and we thank her for all of the

         16  work that she makes at the Planning Commission. We'd

         17  love to know her secret, because we know that her

         18  staff is always at work. You can call almost any

         19  time of day and night, they're there. We appreciate

         20  all of the help that they give us on a yearly basis.

         21  We've done a lot of great projects together. We look

         22  forward to your testimony here today.

         23                 And, Commissioner, you have the

         24  floor.

         25                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you so much. And
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          2  I think that the Executive Director of City Planning

          3  Richard Barth doesn't need an introduction, but just

          4  in case, this is Richard Barth, Executive Director

          5  and my partner in all our endeavors.

          6                 And I want to wish you a good

          7  afternoon, Chair Katz, and members of the Land Use

          8  Committee.

          9                 It is a pleasure to discuss with you

         10  the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2007 Preliminary Budget and

         11  four-year financial plan as it relates to the

         12  Department of City Planning. It is a continued --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: May I interrupt? I

         14  apologize, but you have much better manners than I

         15  do, because you acknowledge the new members of the

         16  Council in your testimony.

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Which reminded me

         19  to introduce you to the new members of the Council.

         20  And I am sorry that I didn't do that before you

         21  started.

         22                 Council Member Avella. Council Member

         23  Robert Jackson, Council Member Garodnick is a new

         24  member from the Upper East Side, right? Upper East

         25  Side. Council Member Rosie Mendez from Manhattan.
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          2                 CHAIR BURDEN: Very glad to meet you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member Gale

          4  Brewer you know, Council Member Vann you know, and

          5  Council Member Felder.

          6                 CHAIR BURDEN: Excellent.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

          8                 Please continue.

          9                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you. I'd like to

         10  congratulate Council Members Clarke, Dickens,

         11  Garodnick, Jackson, Lappin, Liu, Mendez and Sears on

         12  your recent appointment to the Land Use Committee.

         13  So, I look forward to working with each one of you.

         14                 Since I last addressed the Land Use

         15  Committee and the Department's Budget, much has been

         16  accomplished in partnership with the City Council.

         17                 Since the beginning of this

         18  Administration, and this number is extraordinary

         19  indeed, 55 area rezonings have been approved by the

         20  City Council. It's a really historic number,

         21  representing such far ranging communities as

         22  Olinville in the Bronx to the Far West Village here

         23  in Manhattan, from Sheepshead Bay in Brooklyn to

         24  Whitestone in Queens.

         25                 We have brought to fruition the West
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          2  Chelsea Special District in Manhattan, which was

          3  just recently honored, you should know, we should

          4  all know, and celebrate, with an American Planning

          5  Association national award. It is indeed on the

          6  cover of Planning Magazine this month.

          7                 The plan will transform the high line

          8  into a unique public open space, creating new

          9  housing and will preserve the City's premiere art

         10  gallery district.

         11                 In Staten Island, working with our

         12  partners on the Mayor's Growth Management Task

         13  Force, we fine-tuned the regulations governing the

         14  Island's commercial strips to limit inappropriate

         15  residential development, and we have closed several

         16  troublesome loopholes in the zoning.

         17                 In Brooklyn, we have worked closely

         18  with the community and civic organizations and our

         19  partners at HPD to devise a plan for South Park

         20  Slope that will balance neighborhood preservation

         21  goals with affordable housing production along

         22  Fourth Avenue.

         23                 In Queens we rezoned 200 blocks of

         24  Cambria Heights to preserve neighborhood character

         25  and in the Bronx, we completed our eight rezoning
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          2  for Riverdale.

          3                 I understand, I believe, the Land Use

          4  Committee voted this morning to approve the Pelham

          5  Bay, Westchester Square, and Middle Village-Glendale

          6  rezonings, as well as the West Chelsea Special

          7  District follow-up actions. I'm very grateful, we're

          8  very grateful for this support and look forward to

          9  the full City Council's approval of these

         10  initiatives next week.

         11                 Later this month, the Land Use

         12  Committee will hear the Midwood and Union Utopia

         13  Parkway rezoning, to be followed by several more

         14  areawide rezonings that are at various stages of the

         15  ULURP process.

         16                 The Department is working on a number

         17  of other initiatives to address the City's urgent

         18  need for new housing, including affordable housing

         19  for a range of incomes.

         20                 While neighborhood preservation will

         21  continue to be a priority, we need, we all need to

         22  find opportunities, wherever possible, to

         23  accommodate our growing population.

         24                 Therefore, in each rezoning that has

         25  a corridor well served by Transit, we will look to
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          2  provide opportunities for new housing development at

          3  an appropriate scale.

          4                 And I want to ask the Council to be

          5  our partner in ensuring that we do indeed balance

          6  preservation wherever feasible.

          7                 The Department is moving ahead with

          8  several initiatives that will facilitate housing

          9  production, including Bedford Stuyvesant where the

         10  Department has been working closely with Community

         11  Board 2, Council Member Vann and HPD on a Land Use

         12  and housing plan that will reinforce the

         13  neighborhood's built character and maximize the

         14  vacant and under-utilized public land to create new

         15  housing.

         16                 The Department has also been part of

         17  an interagency effort to examine housing

         18  opportunities for a range of incomes in Sherman

         19  Creek, and taking steps to reunite this community

         20  with its Harlem River waterfront.

         21                 With the support of Council Member

         22  Martinez, we hope to bring forward this plan in the

         23  coming months.

         24                 We are especially proud of the

         25  Department's proposed Stapleton Waterfront Special
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          2  District, which we anticipate certifying this

          3  spring. This plan, stemming from the recommendations

          4  from the Mayor's Homeport Task Force, will help to

          5  catalyze the creation of a vibrant new mixed use

          6  community in which nearly one half of the available

          7  land will be devoted to open space and finally

          8  accessible to the general public.

          9                 I thank Council Member McMahon for

         10  his hard work and partnership in this initiative.

         11                 We are strengthening our regional

         12  business districts, including 125th Street Corridor,

         13  where we have worked with the Harlem community on

         14  the 125th Street River-to-River study to create a

         15  balanced proposal to support a mix of uses along

         16  this corridor that will include both strategic

         17  increases in density, as well as carefully

         18  preserving neighborhood character.

         19                 We look forward to releasing this

         20  framework in the near future to our extended

         21  advisory committee and working with Council Members

         22  Jackson, Dickens and Mark-Viverito to ensure its

         23  success.

         24                 The Department, working together with

         25  EDC and HPD, is finalizing a comprehensive plan for
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          2  356 blocks, that's our largest rezoning, of Downtown

          3  Jamaica, intended to bolster the downtown area while

          4  providing for appropriately scaled development in

          5  the neighboring low-rise communities.

          6                 I would like to thank Council Member

          7  Comrie for his steady partnership in this complex

          8  undertaking.

          9                 The Department is also implementing

         10  ambitious open space plans, including the East River

         11  Waterfront and Fresh Kills. With substantial federal

         12  funding in-hand, the Administration is moving

         13  forward to implement the East River Plan and bring

         14  the public to this two-mile stretch along the

         15  river's edge. And, the Department will release the

         16  Draft Master Plan for Fresh Kills this spring,

         17  culminating an extensive multi-year public outreach

         18  process.

         19                 Now, let me turn to the budget.

         20                 The Department began Fiscal Year 2006

         21  with an expense budget appropriation of $20.3

         22  million, which consisted of $7.6 million in City

         23  funds and $12.7 million in federal funds. Thus, 38

         24  percent of the budget was City dollars, and 62

         25  percent federal dollars.
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          2                 When the current budget was adopted

          3  in July 2005, the Department of City Planning's

          4  authorized headcount was 264 staff positions, at

          5  which 90 were tax levy funded, and the remaining 174

          6  positions were funded with federal dollars.

          7                 The Department's Adopted Budget

          8  included one-year City Council funding of $469,000

          9  for Lower Density studies. A total of six tax levy

         10  positions were added to the budget to enable the

         11  Department to use the Council funded increase for

         12  new planners in the Borough Offices.

         13                 Since adoption, the Department has

         14  undergone two financial plan changes pursuant to

         15  directions from OMB.

         16                 First, the November Finance Plan

         17  reflected several funding adjustments for the

         18  Department. These include permanent funding of

         19  $97,000 for collective bargaining. Of this amount,

         20  32,000 was added to the tax levy budget, and $65,000

         21  was added to the community development budget.

         22                 In addition, the Department once

         23  again received a one-year commitment of $50,000 and

         24  one position for continuing work on the Staten

         25  Island Growth Management Task Force.
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          2                 The Staten Island Growth Management

          3  Task Force position was initially funded in Fiscal

          4  Year 2004, and renewed again in 2005. This position

          5  will terminate at the end of Fiscal Year 2006.

          6                 Further, a one-time increase of

          7  $40,000 was also added to the Department's Other

          8  Than Personal Service budget for the printing of the

          9  zoning handbook. The November Financial Plan also

         10  included a rollover of $160,000 from Fiscal Year

         11  2005 State Waterfront Grant Funding, which will

         12  primarily be used for work on the Fresh Kills Master

         13  Plan and Environmental Assessment.

         14                 Finally, the November Plan includes a

         15  31,000 in Other Than Personal Service rollover of

         16  the Fiscal Year 2005 federal Transportation Grant

         17  Fund.

         18                 There were a number of adjustments

         19  made in the January Financial Plan. The Plan

         20  modified the Department's Adopted Fiscal Year 2006

         21  Tax Levy Budget to reflect a permanent increase of

         22  $73,000 which includes a $23,000 in collective

         23  bargaining, and a $50,000 Other Than Personal

         24  Service adjustment.

         25                 The Department will also receive a
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          2  one-time increase of $44,000 for increased costs

          3  associated with heat, light and power, and a $35,000

          4  for DoITT telecommunications cost.

          5                 In addition, $75,000 was transferred

          6  from Personal Service budget to its Other Than

          7  Personal Service budget to cover escalating

          8  operating expenses.

          9                 Further, the Department had a

         10  miscellaneous adjustment decreasing the Department's

         11  Other Than Personal Service Tax Levy Budget for

         12  $40,000 for the printing of the zoning handbook.

         13  Funding for the handbook has been switched to the

         14  Community Development Fund.

         15                 The January Plan modified the

         16  Department's Community Development Budget to include

         17  a permanent increase of $19,000 for collective

         18  bargaining.

         19                 The plan adds 24 positions and a $3.6

         20  million from federal and State grants.

         21                 The portion of the Department's

         22  budget from federal and State grants is now at the

         23  actual budget staffing level of 41 positions, and

         24  totaling $4.8 million. As in the past, the start of

         25  the Fiscal Year 2007 budget will only reflect a
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          2  portion of the total anticipated federal and State

          3  grant funding. Additional grant funding will be

          4  added to the budget during the course of the year,

          5  as funding becomes available.

          6                 The January Plan also includes

          7  permanent additions to the Department's Tax Levy

          8  budget for Fiscal Year 2007 and subsequent years of

          9  $398,000 and seven positions to increase staffing in

         10  the Manhattan, Brooklyn and Queens Borough offices,

         11  the Population Division, the Human Resources

         12  Division, and the Department's Information

         13  Technology Division. A one-time "Other Than Personal

         14  Service" addition of $35,000 will be added in Fiscal

         15  Year 2007 will be provided to add each new position

         16  with equipment, materials and supplies. In addition,

         17  $100,000 will be permanently added to the

         18  Department's Other Than Personal Service Budget in

         19  Fiscal Year 2007 and subsequent years.

         20                 As a result of these changes, the

         21  January Financial Plan, in the January Financial

         22  Plan, the Department's Fiscal Year 2007 Preliminary

         23  Budget calls for a total allocation of $20.3

         24  million. Tax Levy funds constitute $7.6 million or

         25  37 percent of the proposed budget, while the federal
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          2  funds constitute 12.8 million, or 63 percent of the

          3  proposed budget. This provides for 263 budgeted

          4  staff, 89 City funded positions and 174 federally

          5  funded positions. This includes a reduction from the

          6  adopted budget of six tax levy positions or two

          7  other categorical grant positions and $634,000.

          8                 These changes reflect the one-year

          9  nature of the six positions added by the Council,

         10  and the loss of two positions allocated for the

         11  Hudson Yards Project.

         12                 In addition, one position and $50,000

         13  for Staten Island gross management task force will

         14  be eliminated from the Fiscal Year 2007 community

         15  development budget.

         16                 As previously stated, the Fiscal Year

         17  2007 Preliminary Budget does reflect the position of

         18  seven tax levy positions.

         19                 On the revenue side, the Department

         20  will fulfill OMB's targeted reduction for Fiscal

         21  Year 2006 in subsequent years through increased

         22  revenues. Based on recent and current activity, the

         23  Department is projecting over $1.6 million in Fiscal

         24  Year 2006 revenue, a $250,000 increase from the 1.4

         25  million in Fiscal Year 2005.
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          2                 For Fiscal Year 2007, the

          3  Department's budget reflects the implementation of a

          4  fee increase for CEQR and ULURP applications.

          5  Therefore, it is now projected the revenues will

          6  increase by 225,000 to 1.8 million, Fiscal Year

          7  2007. The decrease in revenue projected for Fiscal

          8  Year 2008 and subsequent years represents a

          9  potential downward economic trend, resulting in a

         10  slow-down in construction activity.

         11                 The overall level of funding for the

         12  Department has not significantly changed. We are

         13  committed to finding ways to meet the challenges and

         14  demands of our growing work program.

         15                 We seek your support of the proposed

         16  Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2007. It will

         17  enable the Department to continue the realize an

         18  agenda vital to the long-term growth and viability

         19  of the City, and we look forward to your active

         20  participation in the planning process.

         21                 Finally, I am thrilled to present to

         22  the Land Use Committee the newly revised and

         23  thoroughly revamped Zoning Handbook, in the works

         24  for the past two years. How can somebody be so

         25  excited about it? I am so excited about this. The
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          2  new Zoning Handbook is indeed an extraordinary

          3  resource for community board members, civic

          4  associations, elected officials and their

          5  constituents.

          6                 It has, as you will see, over 100

          7  pages of text, fantastic diagrams, charts, great

          8  photographs to help decode the complex language of

          9  zoning, and help the layman better understand the

         10  regulations that guide the City's development. Most

         11  importantly, they help the average citizen

         12  participate in the planning process.

         13                 I appreciate the support of the City

         14  Council in this effort and hope that the handbook

         15  becomes a well-used resource for your own purposes.

         16                 I thank you very much, and Richard

         17  and I will be pleased to answer any questions you

         18  may have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very much

         20  for your testimony. I just have a few questions

         21  before I open it up to the floor.

         22                 First of all, thank you for the

         23  Zoning Handbook.  It is long awaited. I'm not going

         24  to ask how much it cost all together. Probably don't

         25  want to know, right? No. But we are sure --
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          2                 CHAIR BURDEN: We're hoping by Amazon

          3  number 4 by next --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Say again.

          5                 CHAIR BURDEN: We're hoping by Amazon,

          6  getting on Amazon number four, you know, people

          7  ordering it -- they can't order it on Amazon, but we

          8  would like it to be. If it could be ordered on

          9  Amazon, it would be a best seller, we're sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: By the way, is

         11  there a way for the general public to get this if

         12  they'd like it?

         13                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes. And it's on our

         14  website, it's at the City Planning bookstore, but

         15  also online government website, on the front page of

         16  the NYC.GOV.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: How much is it?

         18                 CHAIR BURDEN: It's $24.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 CHAIR BURDEN: But you get a bargain

         22  rate if you buy a bunch of them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just have a few

         24  questions. First of all, the money that the City

         25  Council allocated, I think there's 300,000. I'm not
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          2  sure there was 300,000 last year? Do you spend it?

          3                 CHAIR BURDEN: You know, there's a --

          4  first of all, I want to say how much we appreciate

          5  the Council's funding for us, and how important it

          6  has been to our work program.

          7                 However, it's good and bad. The good

          8  thing is we get some money, the bad thing is that

          9  it's only for one year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right.

         11                 CHAIR BURDEN: And I'll just let

         12  Richard elaborate on the constrictions it puts on

         13  us.

         14                 MR. BARTH: I first want to also thank

         15  the Council and echo what Chair Burden said about

         16  how useful these funds have been to be able to move

         17  some of these lower density studies in the boroughs.

         18                 The issues, and we testified to this

         19  last year, when the money is only for one year time

         20  frame, it's both difficult to recruit for one-year

         21  positions, and also from a budgetary perspective, we

         22  have to be somewhat conservative and not fill out

         23  every position with the idea that we may have to not

         24  be able to fund those positions in the following

         25  year.
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          2                 We used the money this year, we have

          3  four planners on staff, and we have currently poor

          4  college aids on staff, City Planning Technicians, to

          5  help in the Land Use studies. There have been

          6  several others during the year that have been on and

          7  have left, they have gone back to school, and we

          8  anticipate bringing a few more City Planning techs

          9  on in April. So, right now we have four and four

         10  City Planners and City Planner techs, and we've

         11  roughly on an annual basis spent about, it's

         12  equivalent to about a $268,000. So, we have not

         13  spent all the money in part for the reasons I cited.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And these folks

         15  don't know whether in June they'll be able to be

         16  kept on, correct?

         17                 MR. BARTH: We've tried to assure them

         18  that we are incredibly optimistic that we will be

         19  able to find the funds to retain them. And what

         20  we've done also is, as we have turnover in other

         21  slots, if the planners are good, we put them into

         22  those other slots and then backfill the one-year

         23  positions. And we do have continual turnover in the

         24  Department.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Madam Chair, can
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          2  you go through, I know you did it sort of in

          3  general, but specifically in the other boroughs, the

          4  difference in the headcount, according to the

          5  preliminary budget? I mean, you could do Manhattan,

          6  too. I think that would be good. I assume there's a

          7  list.

          8                 MR. BARTH: I'm not sure I have the

          9  information exactly as you have asked it.

         10                 CHAIR BURDEN: But we can definitely

         11  get it to you.

         12                 MR. BARTH: I can give it to you right

         13  now for the Department. You're referring to the

         14  changes throughout the year between adopted budget

         15  last year and this year.

         16                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes, and also the new

         17  positions, the $398,000, to which the Chair

         18  mentioned goes to several boroughs but I'm wondering

         19  about the allocation between the Boroughs.

         20                 MR. BARTH: Right. The way those

         21  positions, there's seven positions that will be

         22  added in the baseline, and these came from OMB, two

         23  of the positions are in Manhattan, one is

         24  specifically to work on Lower Manhattan Projects,

         25  and the other important initiatives in Manhattan.
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          2                 Two other boroughs, Brooklyn and

          3  Queens also each got one position, so that's four.

          4  The other three are allocated to our population

          5  division, which is doing an intense amount of work

          6  in terms of demographic projections, we're gearing

          7  up for the 2010 census, and we've also added one

          8  position for a Human Resources Department, which is

          9  woefully understaffed, and civil service and

         10  personnel issues get increasingly more complex

         11  because of the reporting requirements.

         12                 And the last position is -- that's

         13  six, right?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's six. So

         15  basically four of the positions are meant to be --

         16  four of the positions are meant to sort of be the

         17  planners.

         18                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: To help out with

         20  the zonings and the ULURPs and that's two in

         21  Manhattan, one in Brooklyn, one in Queens.

         22                 MR. BARTH: That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And the other ones

         24  are more administrative positions or census-related

         25  positions?
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          2                 MR. BARTH: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. That's really

          4  what I needed to know.

          5                 MR. BARTH: Mm-hmm.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I am very unclear

          7  on one of the issues in the budget which is the

          8  federal category. The rollover of the 1.043 million,

          9  and then in the modified 2006 budget 4,495,000 and

         10  then the preliminary this year, it's 1,042,000. For

         11  my colleagues, this is money that's not City money,

         12  it's federal money. I'm curious as to (a) the

         13  rollover, if there is a rollover to this year, how

         14  much that is?

         15                 And also what that money is meant to

         16  be spent for?

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: They're on different

         18  time frames.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Different time

         20  frames, right.

         21                 MR. BARTH: This is, Chair, it's

         22  really a reflection of almost more of an accounting

         23  issue when we receive grants. Our entire

         24  Transportation Division is, almost the entire

         25  Transportation Division is funded by federal grants,
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          2  and those grants total roughly $3 million.

          3                 A portion of those --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: A year.

          5                 MR. BARTH: A year.

          6                 A portion of those are available at

          7  the beginning of the year, and they get rolled,

          8  they're not reflected in the adopted budget, and get

          9  rolled in throughout the year.

         10                 The other major grant category is for

         11  FreshKills, and we have funding for both the

         12  FreshKills work and our Waterfront Division, which

         13  was funded primarily through grants, State grants.

         14  So, there's two primary categories, there's federal

         15  grants and the State grants, and when they get

         16  applied to the budget, it doesn't affect our

         17  staffing levels. It's not that we have unspent money

         18  that we then, you know, lose, it's really a question

         19  of the budgetary accounting.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But the money has

         21  to be spent for Transportation issues.

         22                 MR. BARTH: That's correct. The

         23  Transportation funding has very specific

         24  restrictions on what they're spent for, and we

         25  actually apply for specific grants and specific
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          2  projects.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's Expense

          4  Budget.

          5                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's studies for

          7  transportation.

          8                 MR. BARTH: Correct. The Greenway

          9  projects, we're doing several in Queens, we're doing

         10  some in Brooklyn.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I guess my

         12  curiosity stems from if we're rolling over money

         13  from there, can't we add new positions?

         14                 You know, that's really the question

         15  that one would ask, if you're rolling over a million

         16  dollars.

         17                 MR. BARTH: Right. And the answer is

         18  that there's no, it's really not new money. It's

         19  money --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You already

         21  allocated for transportation.

         22                 MR. BARTH: -- That already has

         23  assigned to staffing, when we roll that money in

         24  we're not adding staff in the real world, in the

         25  budget it looks like we're adding staff, the
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          2  staffing levels stay exactly the same at the

          3  Department.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: And the federal money

          5  came in a little bit earlier this year, so it's

          6  reflected, those 41 positions are reflected now.

          7  Last year when I was here, sitting here they hadn't

          8  come in yet, but they will come in.

          9                 So, when you look at the number of

         10  positions from each year, they haven't changed at

         11  all. So, we're exactly the same number of positions,

         12  it's just a question of when the money comes in. But

         13  we don't know, we couldn't spend it --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And last but not

         15  least, before opening it up to the floor. We thank

         16  you for your offer in partnering with us on federal

         17  housing. I think that's a good thing. I think that

         18  it really should be noted, however, you've been a

         19  great partner in it, but this Council, from the day

         20  we all got elected I think, has been a very strong

         21  advocate in affordable housing.

         22                 And it's interesting, I spoke at the

         23  ABA the other night on Community Development

         24  agreements, participation agreements, and talked

         25  about the fact that affordable housing now in the
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          2  very beginning because inclusionary zoning wasn't a

          3  designation, nobody would talk about it in the

          4  context of a zoning issue, and it really has become

          5  part of our conversation now on every zoning that

          6  comes through. So, I think that's a great

          7  partnership to have, and as you know, every time a

          8  rezoning does come up, it becomes the number one

          9  issue I think that the Council does look for, so we

         10  thank you for that.

         11                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you for that,

         12  too.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right.

         14                 Councilman Avella, and then Jackson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         16  Madam Chair. First of all, this is a great book,

         17  Commissioner, I'm sure everybody is going to

         18  hopefully buy it and add to your revenue, but I know

         19  I've had civic groups and community leaders ask for

         20  this for years, and I know it's very tough for the

         21  agency to keep up with all the changes, but the book

         22  is excellent.

         23                 I only have one real question,

         24  because I have to say that you have been doing a

         25  great job, the agency has been doing a great job,
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          2  and I know I can speak for a number of my colleagues

          3  and say we wish every City agency responded

          4  effectively as the Department of City Planning does

          5  to our concerns, and residents concerns.

          6                 You alluded to the funding that the

          7  City Council has provided. If you can in ten words

          8  or less, how important is that funding for you to

          9  continue it again in this fiscal budget?

         10                 CHAIR BURDEN: How strongly can I say

         11  it's absolutely critical to our operations to

         12  continue to deliver the services and the studies

         13  that appear to be so important to every Council

         14  member.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well, rest

         16  assured, Commissioner, Jimmy Oddo and I have been

         17  leading the fight every year to get that additional

         18  funding, and I know a number of our colleagues agree

         19  with us, and we will continue to do that again this

         20  year.

         21                 Those low-density rezonings are being

         22  so well met in residential communities throughout

         23  this entire City, and there is so much more on the

         24  plate that we all know about that has to be done in

         25  a very timely basis. So, I congratulate you and
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          2  Richard, and everybody at the agency, and we'll

          3  continue to work together.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you for your

          5  support.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It would be a

          7  wonderful thing, should the Mayor at the request of

          8  their Deputy Mayor and Commissioner, our Chair,

          9  baseline it.

         10                 CHAIR BURDEN: Baseline is a very good

         11  word.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So that we can, you

         13  know, look towards the future and hire people that

         14  we know can become experienced.

         15                 So, we will --

         16                 CHAIR BURDEN: That's a good message.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's a great

         18  message, I think, to send, and so maybe together we

         19  can try to send that message, that baseline would be

         20  much more appropriate, and every year, not knowing

         21  whether or not the money is there, and using some

         22  of, I mean, it's a dance, and using some of our

         23  political collateral to get it. That would be a good

         24  thing.

         25                 Council Member Jackson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 Good afternoon, Madam Chair.

          5                 CHAIR BURDEN: Council member.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I just wanted

          7  to ask you a couple of questions regarding the

          8  Minority and Woman-Owned Business Law, which was

          9  signed into law by Mayor Bloomberg on December 29th,

         10  and where are you, as the Chair of the City Planning

         11  Commission, with respect toward moving toward the

         12  implementation of that law, concerning goals and

         13  objectives for hiring of Minority and Woman-Owned

         14  Business Contractors, and who, if anyone, have you

         15  assigned to be responsible for that at the City

         16  Planning Commission?

         17                 MR. BARTH: Since I'm dealing with

         18  that more closely, I can answer that, Council

         19  member.

         20                 I think first it's important to say

         21  up front that City Planning doesn't do much planning

         22  of outside contractors. In fact, very, very little.

         23  Our main expenses to the outside are for goods and

         24  supplies. So that's to start.

         25                 The person responsible for
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          2  implementing the plan is David Zagor, who is our

          3  ACCO officer at City Planning, and right now, when

          4  we do hire from, not hire, but expenses and goods

          5  and supplies, we work off the list to get bids for

          6  minority and woman-owned enterprises. So, it's

          7  certainly at the top of our agenda, and we'll be

          8  happy to get you more information on what we've done

          9  over the past year.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I think

         11  that Council Member Yvette Clarke, who is the new

         12  Chair of the Contracts Committee, and will be

         13  following up on that. As long as you're saying that

         14  you are basically in line --

         15                 MR. BARTH: Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And moving

         17  toward the implementation and the goals, basically

         18  whatever commissioners or chairs that are coming in

         19  front of the budgetary hearings and since I sit on

         20  the Finance Committee, I'm asking that question.

         21                 Because as a co-chair of the Black,

         22  Latino and Asian Caucus, which are 25 members out of

         23  51, this is an extremely important issue for us, and

         24  so I want to ensure that each agency and Department

         25  are in line with moving towards reaching its goals
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          2  and objectives as set out by the law.

          3                 MR. BARTH: Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Do you know

          5  approximately how much out of your budget, what your

          6  dollar value that you contract out for, you know,

          7  goods and services?

          8                 MR. BARTH: Well, it's really the

          9  purchase of goods. We don't rely much on

         10  consultants. We tend to, the consultants we have,

         11  get through partnerships with EDC.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You don't

         13  know the value of it offhand?

         14                 MR. BARTH: Offhand, I don't know.

         15                 Our entire OTPS budget is roughly

         16  1.7, 1.8 million.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: It's not a

         18  whole lot of money.

         19                 MR. BARTH: So, it's not a whole lot

         20  of money.

         21                 And a good chunk of that budget goes

         22  towards rent and communications.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.

         24                 MR. BARTH: We don't have a lot of

         25  cash.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You know, and

          3  I ask that question because even last year in the

          4  budget hearing process, one small agency had a

          5  computer informations contract, and they eliminated

          6  that contract and brought those four or five

          7  employees in-house as City employees, and they were

          8  able to save about a million dollars.

          9                 MR. BARTH: Mm-hmm.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And who was

         11  in front of us just a few minutes ago? The Acting

         12  Commissioner Bergmann from DoITT, I was asking the

         13  same set of questions regarding the implementation

         14  of Minority and Woman-Owned Business Law, and they

         15  said within the past two years they have brought

         16  employees in-house, and gotten rid of contracts, and

         17  as a result of that have saved $30 million by doing

         18  that.

         19                 I want to make sure that each

         20  Commissioner and Chair focuses in on City employees

         21  that have a decent salary and benefits, because we

         22  all need benefits if we get sick. You know, a lot of

         23  contractors don't have all of those benefits. And

         24  especially when it's much cheaper in order to hire

         25  City employees.
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          2                 So, I just wanted to touch base with

          3  you on that, so you know that that's where I'm

          4  focusing in on.

          5                 CHAIR BURDEN: Good idea.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And then

          7  finally, I look forward to working with you and your

          8  staff concerning the River-to-River 120th Street.

          9  Because I have the West Side of the River, and I

         10  think Melissa Viverito, Mark Viverito has the other

         11  side, and Inez Dickens is in the middle, and also

         12  with the Manhattanville expansion with Community

         13  Board 9 and Columbia University, I look forward to

         14  working with your staff on that.

         15                 CHAIR BURDEN: I certainly do, too,

         16  and within the next month we should be reaching out

         17  to you to give you a briefing on where we are.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

         19  very much. Thank you, Madam Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         21                 Council Member Dickens. Inez Dickens.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         23  much, Madam Chair. And Madam Chair Burden, thank you

         24  so much for being here. I also just want to say

         25  thank you for agreeing to have your staff attend
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          2  last night's Community Board 7's meeting,

          3  surrounding the volatile Broadway corridor rezoning

          4  issue, around the R9X or better RS, R8 for rezoning,

          5  to limit structure height for the protection and

          6  furtherance of contextual buildings.

          7                 And in consideration of affordable

          8  housing, as my Chair spoke of, how can, and maybe

          9  it's not even possible, a temporary construction

         10  moratorium for the express purpose of awaiting a

         11  rezoning process and how long would it take to go

         12  through the rezoning process and what would be the

         13  process to ask for that, if possible?

         14                 CHAIR BURDEN: Actually, a moratorium,

         15  we've discussed it with several Council members who

         16  are here, that a moratorium in itself would take a

         17  ULURP, would take a full ULURP, and might be, mostly

         18  likely might be questioned legally.

         19                 And as we've gone through each area

         20  where a Council Member has requested a moratorium,

         21  it's been decided that proceeding a pace with a

         22  rezoning was much more practical than trying to take

         23  a full ULURP, a year, to enact a moratorium.

         24                 So, both from a legal point of view

         25  and saving time, it's better to proceed with a
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          2  rezoning.

          3                 I'm very much looking forward to

          4  sitting down with you. I heard the meeting went

          5  pretty well last night.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Yes, it went

          7  very well.

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: And we look forward to

          9  working with you on it to achieve a consensus of

         10  where we should go.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Just quickly,

         12  how long is that rezoning process? Just in months?

         13                 CHAIR BURDEN: Well, it depends on the

         14  scale of it. Once it starts the official -- as you

         15  know, ULURP is seven months, but preceding that, it

         16  depends whether there is an upzoning or a

         17  downzoning, we always have to do an environmental

         18  assessment statement. And if there is an

         19  environmental impact, we have to do an environmental

         20  impact.

         21                 It usually takes about a year,

         22  especially a large one, because as you know, we do

         23  it really on a lot-by-lot, house-by-house,

         24  lot-by-lot basis, and it really has to be done very

         25  carefully. It's the environmental review that often
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          2  takes the longest time, it's also the analysis and

          3  building consensus that takes some time.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And I look

          5  forward to working with you on reviewing with my

          6  colleagues the 125th Street study.

          7                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes, we're very eager

          8  to show that to you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Shortly I

         10  will be meeting with many of the merchants on 125th

         11  Street, you know, surrounding this, and they are

         12  very concerned about the rezoning, the possible

         13  rezoning, the possible downzoning that may occur,

         14  particularly at either end of the 125th Street

         15  corridor.

         16                 And I've also already met with the

         17  125th Street BID in an effort to try to find out

         18  exactly what's occurring. So, I look forward to

         19  working with you on that, because that's a piece of

         20  my district.

         21                 CHAIR BURDEN: You're a very key

         22  partner in this endeavor and we're very eager to sit

         23  down with you. We'll be reviewing with the Deputy

         24  Mayor next week, a framework actually on the 28th,

         25  and then we'll be reaching out to you immediately to
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          2  discuss what our thoughts are. It will be a modest,

          3  channeling a modest amount of growth, but in the

          4  areas that should be preserved that really have a

          5  distinctive character to try to protect that. So,

          6  we're trying to do a very balanced and thoughtful

          7  rezoning, and we really want this to be a full

          8  consensus of all of the stakeholders in this

          9  community.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Which would

         11  also protect, please, Madam Chair, would also

         12  protect those small businesses that are still there

         13  and remained in the community and want to remain.

         14                 CHAIR BURDEN: I understand.

         15  Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         17  much.

         18                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         20  Felder.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         22  much, Madam Chair.

         23                 First of all, for the record, I just

         24  want to take exception to the fact that my new

         25  colleagues, Council Member Inez Dickens and Daniel
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          2  Garodnick have been taking copious notes through

          3  today's hearings, which is an affront to me

          4  personally. I'm hopeful as time goes on they will

          5  learn how to do business here in the City Council

          6  and not make me look bad.

          7                 Having said that --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Wait just a

          9  minute, Council Member Felder, I want to answer

         10  that.

         11                 By the way, I am not an alien.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Well, you're

         13  certainly not a Council member the way you -- you're

         14  there like this the whole time. You don't stop. They

         15  say you don't go to the bathroom all day. You know

         16  that?

         17                 All right, having said that, I wanted

         18  to say that (a), I didn't get a copy of this new

         19  book. That's first of all.

         20                 Second of all -- thank you very much.

         21  Now, my understanding is that it's $24 a book, which

         22  means even if I got two, that's $48, I'm still

         23  entitled to another dollar ninety-nine, at least,

         24  under $50 if I'm not allowed to accept it. But I

         25  really would like, I think these are great, really

                                                            187

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  wonderful handbooks, and I think if the Department

          3  of Planning could see fit to at least give us

          4  another two copies, I'm not talking about handing it

          5  out, another copy for somebody else to be able to

          6  use it, it would be greatly appreciated.

          7                 Having said that, we have discussed

          8  over a number of hearings the issue of compelling

          9  the City or cajoling the City to male, and inform

         10  every homeowner or property owner in an area that's

         11  being rezoned that their property is on the table,

         12  and since it's a budget item, I would just say that

         13  if the Department can do it on its own, that would

         14  be great. It's not my idea, I think Councilman

         15  Avella has discussed it repeatedly. If it's

         16  something that has to be budgeted, I think it's

         17  something that we -- I think all the members would

         18  consider something compelling and would take care of

         19  some of the problems that surround the moratorium,

         20  because in some ways, I think if people are informed

         21  of what's happening to their properties, that would

         22  take care of some of the problem, and I think that's

         23  the right thing. People are informed about their

         24  taxes, and if they don't get -- you know, if they

         25  don't pay their taxes, they're informed again, and
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          2  then they're told that they're going to be taken

          3  away, and so with water taxes and other things, I

          4  think that it would be appropriate for homeowners

          5  and property owners to know that the value of their

          6  properties are being increased, decreased, or some

          7  change is taking place. And if it can't be done

          8  through the Department, then I'd like to know that

          9  on record, that it can't be done, and maybe that's

         10  something we have to do as Council members, and I

         11  would be very happy to take it out of my budget, if

         12  I can't do it any other way, obviously, as long as I

         13  could get a disk that gives me the properties, or if

         14  the mailing is going to be done through you and some

         15  sort of financial transfer has to take place. But it

         16  looks bad for the City and it looks bad for me as a

         17  representative. If something is taking place in my

         18  district, then people suddenly start calling a week,

         19  usually it's a week or two before. And we had

         20  something like that at the last hearing where

         21  somebody claimed that he wasn't informed, and then

         22  we have to go through something like that.

         23                 So, the question is a budgetary one,

         24  whether the Department, you know, can include this

         25  in its budget, and if, you know, if it cannot, what
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          2  can we do to do this on our own?

          3                 CHAIR BURDEN: I know this has been a

          4  concern of yours, Council member, and we are aware

          5  of it. I know it's a logistical and it's a very

          6  complex issue. Do you want to take a crack at that?

          7                 MR. BARTH: I'll take a crack, and it

          8  is both a financial issue, it's a logistical issue,

          9  and I think it's also a communication issue.

         10                 As you know, we've made every effort

         11  as part of our rezoning to build consensus outreach,

         12  we use our website, the CPC posts notices in terms

         13  of its hearings, the community board, there's a

         14  number of ways, mechanisms that are used to do

         15  outreach, and we obviously go beyond what's required

         16  by the law in terms of notification, go beyond the

         17  law in notification. But I recognize the issue

         18  you're raising, and I think the problems are a

         19  couple.

         20                 One is that it is a cost issue. Last

         21  year we checked and we undertook rezonings, in terms

         22  of it covered almost 80,000 lots, and strictly if

         23  one were to do a certified mailing, at $1.29, that's

         24  over $100,000 in costs right there. Then there's the

         25  staffing that's associated with doing that.
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          2                 But I think more important beyond the

          3  money is the challenge is about the logistics of it.

          4  At City Planning we have records of the lot, block

          5  and lot and the address, we don't have records of

          6  the property owners. So, we couldn't necessarily

          7  mail something to a property and the occupant if

          8  it's vacant or it's a rental building. There's a lot

          9  of issues. We'd have to work with Finance Department

         10  in terms of getting their names. So there's that

         11  side.

         12                 I think the other part is, what

         13  exactly would we be notifying people of, when would

         14  we be notifying, we say, hey, you're being rezoned,

         15  come to a hearing, but we don't necessarily know

         16  when the Commission certifies, when the community

         17  board is scheduling their hearing.

         18                 So, there's a lot of issues that

         19  would have to be really thought through very

         20  carefully, as well as the significant staff

         21  resources and cost to doing the mailing. I would

         22  like to think we could sit down and see if there are

         23  other ways we can improve the outreach, and other

         24  ways of reaching members of yours without

         25  necessarily having to do a mailing to each and every
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          2  property owner.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Well, you know

          4  I love you, but that's not good enough. I'm sorry. I

          5  don't take that. You have an unbelievable agency and

          6  I echo Councilman Avella's compliments, and that's

          7  not enough, I'm sorry.

          8                 You know, Councilman Avella, I think

          9  many of my colleagues are prepared to spend the time

         10  with you or your agency to figure out an easy way to

         11  do this. I don't think it's that complicated, in

         12  terms of when -- at the first point that something

         13  is being proposed, the earliest time, that's the

         14  time you notify people, in terms of property owners.

         15  It's not regulated by law, right? So it's not a

         16  question where somebody could come back and say you

         17  didn't notify it, unless you want us to mandate it

         18  by law, which I don't think you do. You know, we're

         19  trying to work something out without legislating it.

         20  That's the purpose. Sending a notice to the

         21  property, okay? You know, we start out, see how that

         22  works, we send it to the property itself, wherever

         23  the block and lot, wherever the real estate tax,

         24  that's what I would say, wherever you're billing

         25  people for the tax, for real estate and water tax,
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          2  you send a notification.

          3                 In terms of other meetings, other

          4  meetings that take place, we just had the

          5  Commissioner of 3-1-1 here, it's an extraordinary

          6  tool, very simple thing, you put on the first

          7  notification, you say to the people, please be

          8  advised that there is a proposed rezoning in your

          9  area that includes your block and lot. If you would

         10  like further information regarding meetings that

         11  will take place, 3-1-1. It's out of your hands. And

         12  3-1-1 will coordinate. I know he's not here now, but

         13  we could coordinate that with him so that people

         14  could call 3-1-1, and maybe when they call 3-1-1,

         15  they'll notify, please call Community Board 12 to

         16  get further information, or 14, about the meetings.

         17                 I just think that it's something

         18  that's driving people crazy, and I really would like

         19  to work together with your agency, not for an

         20  alternate way of notifying them. To be able to do

         21  this without driving you crazy in doing it. But it

         22  has to be done. People deserve the right to know.

         23  And it can't be perfect, but to serve the right to

         24  know, and I'm not say it should be entirely in your

         25  cost.
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          2                 In fact, when you mentioned, you

          3  know, the Chair mentioned about telling the Mayor

          4  that you need the money, I think we should be in a

          5  philanthropic mood, maybe we would match it

          6  dollar-for-dollar, you know? Like the City Council

          7  should put in the money and the Mayor should put in

          8  the extra money. I mean, I think you need a lot more

          9  money. Regina Meyer in Brooklyn does an

         10  extraordinary job. I think she can use a lot more

         11  money. So, it's not a question of whether you do the

         12  money or we do the money, I think you deserve double

         13  the money. But I think at the same time we must get

         14  this done.

         15                 CHAIR BURDEN: So we will put together

         16  and lay out all the issues as we see them, and just

         17  transmit them to you, and you might say like I know

         18  all those issues, or you might say, wow, I didn't

         19  realize what the implications are. So, let's start

         20  that way.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I think the

         23  way we'll start, with due respect to the Chair, is

         24  you can lay out whatever implications, but it's not

         25  only to me. I think a lot of my colleagues, and I
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          2  think we could meet to prove to you that it's not

          3  such a big deal. I'm being stubborn.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I also think,

          5  though, tagging onto what the Councilman is saying,

          6  one of the things he said that should affect you

          7  quite deeply is that we're not doing it by

          8  legislation right now, and we can. And I think,

          9  though, that when you look up, you know, I look up

         10  block and lot numbers all the time, on Aris, and I

         11  look on the City government website, it's not a

         12  difficult thing to do in today's world, and I do

         13  think that it has become a huge issue.

         14                 We're going to have to figure out a

         15  way to notify the public, whether it is just sending

         16  out mass mailings.

         17                 I will tell my colleagues, though, in

         18  the meantime, before this is all figured out, I do

         19  put them in my newsletter. I do put the websites in

         20  my newsletter. I put whether or not I'm even looking

         21  into a rezoning from my district in my newsletters.

         22  I put press releases out. At least in my community,

         23  if someone says to me I didn't know, then, you know,

         24  normally it would be a very unusual issue.

         25                 So, in the meantime, but we really do
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          2  need to work out something like this.

          3                 I mean, we send newsletters to

          4  everybody in a community, there doesn't seem to be

          5  any reason we can't do a mailing list on this issue.

          6  It's the same type of mailing list.

          7                 Council Member Garodnick.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair. Commissioner Burden, Mr. Barth, it's

         10  nice to see you again.

         11                 CHAIR BURDEN: Good to see you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I do want

         13  to note, of course, that Commissioner Burden is one

         14  of my constituents and we're particularly glad to

         15  see her today --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So you'll be nice

         17  to her.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I will be

         19  nice to her.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: She's a voter.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: On the

         22  issue of federal appropriations, it seems to me that

         23  the City Planning is in a bit of a unique position

         24  in that 62 percent as you described it, comes from

         25  federal sources.
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          2                 The point that I remain a little

          3  confused about is, how are those dollars earmarked?

          4                 I assume that they are not simply

          5  sent over without restrictions and strings, how is

          6  that done? And that I think you said was $12.7

          7  million.

          8                 MR. BARTH: Mm-hmm.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: How is that

         10  earmarked? What are the restrictions?

         11                 MR. BARTH: Well, about half of the

         12  City's total budget, and we can get you the exact

         13  figures, out of the federal and state money, about,

         14  I think it's 9 million are community development

         15  block grants, so about half of our staff at City

         16  Planning is funded through the CD funds, and those

         17  are assigned to positions that are specifically

         18  eligible for CD funds. It's planning-related

         19  neighborhood improvement positions.

         20                 So, most of our borough offices are

         21  all funded through the CD budget, and we also have

         22  other planning-related positions located at 22 Green

         23  Street that are also funded through the CD budget.

         24                 The other category of grants, the one

         25  that come in throughout the year, are tied to
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          2  specific grants. We have, I mentioned that our

          3  Transportation Division is entirely funded through

          4  federal grants, and there they're specifically tied

          5  to both the funding source and specific proposals we

          6  make.

          7                 So, we have roughly it's split up

          8  into the CMMAQ, Congestion Management Mitigation Air

          9  Quality funding, we do a lot of our bicycle greenway

         10  pedestrian work through those fundings.  We also

         11  have what's called "subregional planning grants,"

         12  which is the fed's technical term for doing modeling

         13  transportation air quality modeling that we do in

         14  conjunction with this group called NYMT, New York

         15  Metropolitan Transportation. It's kind of, it

         16  relates to the City's projections and Citywide

         17  traffic and air quality monitoring. And then we have

         18  specific projects that we have applied for grants

         19  for. So things like Queens Plaza improvements, we've

         20  done some work in Downtown Flushing, Brooklyn

         21  pedestrian improvements, that's another category of

         22  grants.

         23                 We get money for these projects,

         24  that's what the people have to work on.

         25                 The final category are primarily from
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          2  the State grants, and there the major money we're

          3  using it for is really the lion's share for the

          4  FreshKills landfill, turning that into a park, and

          5  we have gotten grants both for the preparation of

          6  the master plan, and the grant money that we have

          7  coming down the pike will be used for the

          8  environmental work.

          9                 I hope that's responsive to what

         10  you're asking.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:

         12  Specifically for waterfront revitalization within

         13  the State grants --

         14                 MR. BARTH: We do have a couple

         15  smaller projects very specifically geared towards

         16  some of those waterfront projects.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And what

         18  are those projects?

         19                 MR. BARTH: We've got one that's

         20  Newtown Creek's street end improvement. We had just

         21  a small grant in opportunity to improve the street

         22  ends on Newtown Creek, turning fenced off street

         23  ends into small vest pocket parks. And there's some

         24  other minor ones that I have to be honest with you,

         25  I'm not even familiar with all of them. There's
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          2  maybe three or four others.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, these

          4  are small relative to the other grants to have.

          5                 MR. BARTH: Very small.

          6                 CHAIR BURDEN: And many for design.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: For design

          8  of?

          9                 CHAIR BURDEN: We designed a little

         10  street-end park in Newtown Creek, but they didn't

         11  get implemented.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, well,

         13  I know that we share a concern, a vision for

         14  expanded greenspace around our waterfronts in New

         15  York City, and of course, I'm looking forward to

         16  working with you on the issue of a Con Edison

         17  waterside plant and the redevelopment over there

         18  which presents obviously historic and unique

         19  opportunities to do that.

         20                 And one final question for you is on

         21  this tax levy position. I heard it frequently in

         22  your testimony, and I must admit that I don't know

         23  what the responsibilities are of the tax levy

         24  position within City Planning, and wanted to know if

         25  you could explain that a little further.
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          2                 CHAIR BURDEN: It means City funded,

          3  but --

          4                 MR. BARTH: Tax levy generally?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Yes. No,

          6  no, it was described as there are seven positions as

          7  tax levy. Did that mean -- now, maybe I

          8  misunderstood. That means that it's just funded by

          9  the --

         10                 MR. BARTH: It's just funded by the

         11  general fund.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: It was a

         13  little unclear the way I heard it. Okay. So, there

         14  are no, there is no tax element here, that would

         15  have been very --

         16                 CHAIR BURDEN: No. It just is another

         17  way of saying City funded.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, I

         19  understand. Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Before I forget,

         21  Chair Burden, I know Councilman Felder is mostly

         22  kidding, I don't know if he was kidding or not, but

         23  the fact of the matter is, it would be helpful if

         24  the Council members were distributed maybe like the

         25  Green Book, you know, we're all allocated a certain

                                                            201

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  amount. It's not really the money, it's just easier

          3  if we get them, because most of our staff could use

          4  them too. So, maybe you guys could think of two or

          5  three of them coming to each Council office or

          6  something like that. I don't know how you're going

          7  to do it, but if you could do that, that would be

          8  great.

          9                 CHAIR BURDEN: We'll think about that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         11  Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         13  Chair.

         14                 Good afternoon. I think you should

         15  use the phrase "tax levy" more often, it would

         16  remind all of us where the money comes from and that

         17  our constituents are overtaxed. How do you like that

         18  one?

         19                 Chairwoman Burden, back in December I

         20  approached a high-ranking member of the

         21  Administration, and I said someone should propose

         22  this idea to the Mayor, they should go in the budget

         23  and find $5 million or $10 million somewhere else,

         24  and create this quality of life initiative where

         25  they take that 10 million or that 5 million and
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          2  allocate a bunch of it to City Planning, to

          3  Landmarks, the Department of Transportation, to the

          4  Borough Offices, because I happen to think that your

          5  agencies in 2006 have as much a quality of life role

          6  as the Police Department or the Fire Department. And

          7  I was promptly told that's not going to happen,

          8  which was no surprise.

          9                 But I really think that you folks are

         10  underfunded and I know Council Member Avella alluded

         11  to the fact that for the last couple of years we in

         12  the Council have tried to fight to get you more

         13  money and we're committed to doing that again this

         14  year.

         15                 I have one specific question, and

         16  then one parochial question. And Richard, you could

         17  answer this. Which Borough of the five has the most

         18  applications presented, that handles the most

         19  applications?

         20                 MR. BARTH: On a strictly number basis

         21  it is Staten Island.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Is there any

         23  other way of defining it?

         24                 MR. BARTH: Well, you know, many of

         25  the applications, in Staten Island you have a lot of
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          2  applications for the school seat certifications, for

          3  the certifications relating to the special districts

          4  that are there. And the reason I said it that way is

          5  that Staten Island today, from time to time has

          6  major ULURP projects, like the NASCAR application,

          7  but we've had certainly in Brooklyn and Manhattan

          8  and Queens, and even to a lesser extent the Bronx,

          9  more, larger applications that require significant

         10  more environmental and internal review. So, that's

         11  why I qualified it with, you know, the number and

         12  then there's the complexity of the application.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Without getting

         14  into the details, the operational details, but you

         15  have a good sense of the activity levels in each of

         16  the boroughs and which borough offices seems to be

         17  inundated more than the other? Or from an

         18  operational point of view there is a mechanism in

         19  place for you guys to measure when, and it doesn't

         20  have to be Staten Island, when a particular borough

         21  office is really inundated with a number of

         22  applications, and is there a way of adjusting

         23  personnel accordingly, or do the best you can,

         24  folks? It doesn't have to be Staten Island. It could

         25  be Brooklyn. Let's talk about Brooklyn.

                                                            204

          1  LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 MR. BARTH: I could say we're

          3  inundated in every borough. You know, a strong

          4  economy means that we have a lot more applications.

          5  Our applications are up again this year. And as you

          6  know, that's on top of the many initiatives we have

          7  in Staten Island as well, in terms of now the

          8  transportation task force, growth management task

          9  force, and several of these other studies.

         10                 We try to -- it's not easy for us to

         11  shift from one office to another, and I can tell you

         12  that, you know, in terms of everybody is busy, we're

         13  all working at full capacity.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One last

         15  question specifically about Staten Island.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But it doesn't

         17  have to be Staten Island.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: This one has to

         19  be Staten Island. It's about the one position that

         20  will be terminated, the Staten Island Taskforce

         21  position that was funded in '04 and '05, and

         22  terminates at the end of this year.

         23                 Is it terminating because there is no

         24  money? Or is it terminating because --

         25                 MR. BARTH: It hasn't been included in
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          2  the '07 plan. And last year as well it wasn't

          3  included in the plan that was adopted then was

          4  folded in later in the year. So, the '07 plan does

          5  not have the funds there for that position.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

          7                 MR. BARTH: We're certainly hopeful we

          8  will get them put back.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. I am as

         10  well.

         11                 Okay, fair enough. Thank you, folks.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just so you know,

         13  Councilman Oddo, before you came in we also asked

         14  about baselining, about money, and getting hopefully

         15  the support of the agency as we make a request to

         16  the Mayor to baseline that money.

         17                 Before we start the second round,

         18  Councilman Avella has another question.

         19                 I also would like to notify the

         20  public that we are going to have testimony right

         21  after. I believe he's probably the last questioner.

         22  And the only people I have on record is Lisa from

         23  the Municipal Arts Society, Seth from the Municipal

         24  Arts Society, and Hunter Armstrong from Landmark

         25  West.
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          2                 So, if you want to testify, please

          3  sign up.

          4                 Councilman Avella.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thanks. Thank

          6  you, Madam Chair.

          7                 I just wanted to back up what Council

          8  Member, Simcha was saying about the mailings. I

          9  mean, Commissioner, you and I have now talked about

         10  this issue I think for almost a year, and I think

         11  it's incumbent on the agency to do something more

         12  than it is doing. Obviously, the questions and the

         13  issues that have been raised about when you do it,

         14  how you do it, are all legitimate, but I think those

         15  conversations should have been a year ago. I'm sort

         16  of disappointed to hear that we're back at almost

         17  like square one, a year later.

         18                 And as the Chair mentioned, you know,

         19  there is legislation. Councilman Gennaro introduced

         20  legislation last year to mandate that the agency do

         21  it, and, you know, we could pass that legislation. I

         22  think it's better to work together, but I can tell

         23  you, because Chair of the Zoning Committee, how many

         24  people come up at every zoning meeting in every

         25  neighborhood, even though they're in favor of the
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          2  rezonings, why wasn't I notified? I can get the tax

          3  bill, but I can't get a notice from the City on

          4  this. And I think it's something that you and the

          5  Administration have to bite the bullet, and you're

          6  going to have to do it. I mean that's just my

          7  opinion.

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: I definitely hear you,

          9  and I hear that it's really on the top of the

         10  agenda, and let's get on it. I apologize for letting

         11  it slip.

         12                 And I want to just take this

         13  opportunity for thanking you for everything you've

         14  done on the Zoning and Franchises Committee. It's

         15  been great to work with you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Madam Chair, thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Richard, thank you

         20  very much. As always, it's been a pleasure.

         21                 I want to thank my colleagues, by the

         22  way, who are sticking around. We've got three people

         23  from the public, but I appreciate that. See,

         24  Manhattan folks, too. New Council members stayed the

         25  whole time. Terrible example. I'm impressed. Don't
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          2  listen to them, I am impressed.

          3                 Thank you, Chair Burden.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you. Thank you

          5  all.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Oh, and thank you

          7  for the handbook once again.

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: Oh, appreciate it. I

          9  hope Council Member Oddo got his. How many? Did you

         10  take Council Member Oddo's handbook too?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Madam Chair, in all

         12  seriousness, if you could distribute them to all the

         13  Council members, because it would be very helpful.

         14  Thank you. Two or three copies would be great. One

         15  copy? Okay, can we maybe have one or two more?

         16  There's two offices. It's just easier for us. Again,

         17  it's not the money of getting it, it's easier. We

         18  just want to be able, because there is two offices,

         19  and all the Council members partake in it.

         20                 Okay, three members of the public,

         21  Hunter Armstrong, Seth Johnson and Lisa Kersavage.

         22  Anybody from the public?

         23                 Is there any other person from the

         24  public? Why don't you guys come up together.

         25                 Anybody else from the public here to
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          2  testify? No? Okay.

          3                 You want to state your name for the

          4  record? I'm not going to put a clock on you. But

          5  brief would be good.

          6                 MR. ARMSTRONG: Okay, my name is

          7  Hunter Armstrong. I'm the Assistant Director of

          8  Landmark West. We're a community-based organization

          9  working since 1985 to preserve the architectural

         10  heritage of Manhattan's Upper West Side.

         11                 I wanted to thank you for this

         12  opportunity to comment on the Landmarks Preservation

         13  Commission budget for Fiscal Year 2006, 2007. Since

         14  the enactment of the Landmarks Law, and the creation

         15  of the Landmarks Preservation Commission in 1965,

         16  historic preservation has gained increasing public

         17  support among private citizens and elected

         18  officials.

         19                 However, the Commission itself has

         20  been criticized for not acting quickly enough to

         21  designate and protect threatened historic resources,

         22  for causing unnecessary delay to property owners who

         23  seek to make changes to their designated historic

         24  buildings, and for failing to enforce the law when

         25  property owners violate it.
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          2                 A few figures to elucidate the source

          3  of this criticism:

          4                 The Commission now regulates more

          5  than 23,000 buildings, 20 percent more than it did

          6  ten years ago.

          7                 It processes 66 percent more permit

          8  applications, charged with the enforcement of

          9  violations to those 23,000 buildings.

         10                 Spread out over 321 square miles are

         11  two Commission enforcement officials.

         12                 So, it comes down to this: The

         13  pronounced reduction in the Commission's funding and

         14  staff throughout the last decade seriously

         15  undermined the agency's efforts to do its job, and

         16  this is a loss to all New Yorkers.

         17                 In fact, the City allots more money

         18  for demolishing New York's buildings than for

         19  preserving them through the Landmarks Preservation

         20  Commission.

         21                 The City's budget for the Commission

         22  is less than one-one-hundredth of one percent of the

         23  City's expenditures. And as public testimony at

         24  three oversight hearings in the past year and a

         25  half, numerous reports, the Landmarks Hearing Bill,
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          2  introduced by Council Member Bill Perkins, and

          3  continued loss of important pieces of our City's

          4  heritage show the Landmarks Preservation Commission

          5  falls short of fulfilling its charge to, quote,

          6  designate the City's landmarks and buildings in the

          7  City's historic districts, and regulate changes to

          8  designated buildings, the duties that are so vital

          9  to maintaining the integrity of our landmarks and

         10  districts.

         11                 Specifically the Commission needs

         12  greater funding to restore its Survey Department to

         13  take a proactive approach to designating landmarks.

         14  Further, to increase its enforcement staff of two

         15  will increase the Commission's capacity to issue and

         16  enforce violations for illegal work and restore

         17  confidence in the preservation process.

         18                 To ensure the long-term integrity of

         19  New York's landmarks, the buildings and landscapes

         20  that come to mind and visualize this great city, we

         21  urge you to invest in the Landmarks Preservation

         22  Commission and increase the budget allotment.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very much

         25  for waiting today and for your patience and your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 MR. JOHNSON: I am Seth Johnson

          4  speaking on behalf of the Municipal Arts Society in

          5  the place of Lisa Kersavage, our Director of

          6  Preservation, who wanted to be here. She was here at

          7  11:00 but wasn't able to stay.

          8                 We handed out packets about the

          9  Landmarks Preservation Commission's budget, and

         10  that's what I'm going to talk about. I'm going to

         11  read testimony and then describe the charts.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Why don't you read

         13  the testimony. Is this the testimony you want to

         14  talk about?

         15                 MR. JOHNSON: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JOHNSON: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         18                 MR. JOHNSON: The preservation is a

         19  critical issue in New York and is remarkably

         20  successful in how it functions. Particularly given

         21  our expensive real estate and the broad range of

         22  architecture found in our districts, from the cast

         23  iron warehouses in SoHo to the Brownstones of

         24  Brooklyn Heights.

         25                 Indeed, our law and the way we
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          2  implement it, is the envy of cities across the

          3  country. Furthermore, preservation has a real and

          4  positive effect on the City's economy in stabilizing

          5  neighborhoods and increasing property values and

          6  bringing tourists to the City.

          7                 We know there is frustration with the

          8  Commission, which in large part stems from the pace

          9  at which the Commission designates buildings in

         10  districts. We believe that the single thing that

         11  would bring about the most fundamental change to

         12  historic preservation practice in New York City

         13  today would be to increase the Commission's budget

         14  so that they have adequate staff to fulfill their

         15  mandate.

         16                 We have a sense that the Commission's

         17  workload has increased, while the budget and

         18  staffing have decreased, but we didn't have the hard

         19  facts to prove that point, so we began compiling

         20  information on staffing, spending, permitting,

         21  designations and budgeting all the way back to the

         22  1960s in some circumstances. Our sources include the

         23  Mayor's Management Reports, files from the Historic

         24  City Committee, which issued a report in 1989, a

         25  comprehensive report then, the Independent Budget
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          2  Office, Comptroller's files and the Mayor's budget

          3  documents.

          4                 Our data showed us that while the

          5  Commission's budget staff have decreased,

          6  comparatively the number of permit applications has

          7  increased dramatically.

          8                 As a result, more and more of the

          9  Commission's spending is devoted to the dedicated

         10  staff who keep up with the rising tide of permits at

         11  the cost of landmark and historic district

         12  designation.

         13                 In the end, the most astonishing fact

         14  we found is just how much their workload related to

         15  permit applications has increased. In the last ten

         16  years, the permit applications to the Commission

         17  have nearly doubled. This certainly tells a very

         18  positive story about the State of the City's

         19  economy.

         20                 We read into this figure that jobs

         21  are being created, the City's tax base is growing,

         22  and that the City is generating increased revenues.

         23                 The upward trend in permit

         24  applications is strong and not likely to decrease.

         25                 But while there is a feverish pace to
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          2  the City's development activity, the pace of

          3  designations is slowing. This is a very serious

          4  problem, because at this critical time when we must

          5  need the Commission's powers to protect our

          6  communities, they lack the staff to exercise their

          7  power to the extent necessary.

          8                 As neighborhoods are redeveloped, we

          9  need the Commission to ensure that our historic

         10  resources are preserved.

         11                 The citizens of this City are

         12  clamoring for help to save their neighborhoods, and

         13  the most effective tool we have is the Commission's

         14  authority to designate buildings and districts. Yet,

         15  the Commission just doesn't have the staff to act on

         16  all the requests for designation, leading to not

         17  only frustration, but also to a loss of the sense of

         18  place, of history and the culture that makes New

         19  York a great City.

         20                 Our data tell a story of an agency

         21  filled with staff members who work hard, or more

         22  accurately doggedly and devotedly, to efficiently

         23  process permit applications and designate the few

         24  buildings and districts their very small staff can

         25  handle. But with the upward trend in permit
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          2  applications and the desperate need for increased

          3  levels of staffing of landmark and district

          4  designations, they need a larger budget to hire more

          5  staff.

          6                 We've taken our 20 plus years of data

          7  and analyzed it and determined that the Commission

          8  and New York City would be well served by an

          9  increase of 16 percent in funding.

         10                 We believe that increase would bring

         11  their staffing level to a point where it could deal

         12  with the rising tide of permit applications, and the

         13  increased need for landmark designations. We urge

         14  you to increase the Commission's authorized funding

         15  by 16 percent.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: My understanding is

         17  you handed out one chart?

         18                 MR. JOHNSON: We handed out one table

         19  that has sort of all of the data that we collected

         20  from 1965 on, and then some of the more salient

         21  points we put into chart form.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Great.

         23                 MR. JOHNSON: In color.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I want to just

         25  point out, if I can, I'll do it if it's all right
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          2  with you, I want to point out to my colleagues, this

          3  is actually a very interesting chart. It's all about

          4  the increase in permit applications from 162 in 1968

          5  to 9,019 in the year 2005. So, and then the actions,

          6  how many of the actions were taken over the next

          7  year I guess it was.

          8                 MR. JOHNSON: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, if you don't

         10  have it, we should make sure you do get it.

         11                 Councilman Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Madam Chair, is

         13  it out of line to ask if City Planning could provide

         14  us with a similar chart, understanding that the

         15  categories above don't apply? But I mean, the actual

         16  spending, the number of staff people, the number of

         17  applications that are received, because this really

         18  is a telling chart.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes. I think that's

         20  something we can ask Commissioner Burden.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think what you

         23  probably mean, or you can tell me what you mean

         24  after, but you want it like the number of

         25  applications at the City Planning Commission, how
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          2  many were taken, how many things were acted upon in

          3  a single year, and how it's increased or decreased

          4  over time. It may be by borough.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes. When you

          6  break it down into this similar chart, I mean, it

          7  makes the case for us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Maybe we can ask

          9  the Landmarks Preservation Committee. I'm kidding.

         10                 MR. JOHNSON: Actually, we put this

         11  together internally.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No, I know that.

         13  Oh, no, the Municipal Arts Society, right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I know the group

         15  did, but I'm saying if he can do it, certainly an

         16  agency can do it. And I think it would be --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, I agree with

         18  you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I agree.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I agree City

         23  Planning can, yes.

         24                 MR. JOHNSON: If I could just walk

         25  through the actual charts?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Do we have them?

          3                 MR. JOHNSON: They should be

          4  underneath the --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, go ahead.

          6                 MR. JOHNSON: -- Table.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Go ahead.

          8                 MR. JOHNSON: The first one is just a

          9  pi chart that shows what I think the Commission said

         10  this morning, is their budget is minuscule, and as

         11  my colleague here said, it's less than

         12  one-one-hundredth of one percent. And an increase of

         13  16 percent is absolutely minuscule within this

         14  context. It's dwarfed by everything else.

         15                 In order to get the percent of

         16  spending that the Landmarks Commission accounts for

         17  out of the City's total onto this chart so it would

         18  show up, we had to blow it up five times. So, and

         19  this is also an agency with a huge mandate. It's a

         20  lot of bang for the buck, I guess.

         21                 If you turn the page, it tells

         22  another story about permit applications received and

         23  staffing, and really sort of the really impressive

         24  thing, the bars are the number of permit

         25  applications received in the line. It's the number
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          2  of full-time staff members. As that shows, the

          3  number of full-time staff members peaked in 1990 and

          4  the application, permit applications have more than

          5  doubled since that time, while the staff has been

          6  cut, full-time staff has been cut from 70 to 41. And

          7  the obvious conclusion from this is the Commission's

          8  regulatory workload has skyrocketed, and I should

          9  add that they do handle the permit applications

         10  quite well.

         11                 The next chart shows just a simple

         12  rough measure of how much this workload has

         13  increased, permit applications per staff, we took

         14  the number of permit applications, we divided by the

         15  number of staff. The LPC staff is incredibly

         16  efficient, and each year individual staff members

         17  issue more permits. In order to illustrate this

         18  upward trend, we divided the total number of permits

         19  applications by the number of staff. And this is

         20  actually somewhat lower than it should be, because

         21  the Commission only has its preservation staff

         22  dealing with permits, and we didn't have a breakdown

         23  for Preservation staff, so the number should

         24  actually be higher.

         25                 And the final chart just shows that
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          2  at the same time as the permit applications have

          3  risen, the designations have dropped. This is the

          4  number of sites designated in the purple, and the

          5  blue is the number of permit applications. The

          6  designations have been trending down.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I thank you. And I

          8  thank you for the work that the Municipal Arts

          9  Society does.

         10                 Anybody have any questions?

         11                 Anybody else from the public?

         12                 I thank you both, gentlemen, for

         13  waiting and for testifying. I appreciate all of the

         14  Council members that stayed for the day. The vote,

         15  the final vote?

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The final vote

         17  of all of the items in front of the Committee were

         18  24 in favor, none in opposition, and no abstentions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. Meeting

         20  adjourned.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 1:25 p.m.)
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